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LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED 2 X{t THRA A

Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE
BUSINESS REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group recorded a revenue
of HK$1,560 million, increased by 17.4% as compared to last year; and
a net profit of HK$330 million for the year, representing an increase of
6.9% as compared to last year.

Gross profit margin of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014
increased substantially from 35.7% of the last year to 41.9%; while the
net profit margin recorded a slight decrease from 23.2% to 21.2%, due
to the exchange loss arising from the depreciation of RMB, which partially
offset the Group's profit.

PROSPECTS

The Group completed the construction of the new Jiangxi plant. The
first phase production line has been officially put into production in the
second half of the year and has contributed profit since November.
The Group plans to invest approximately RMB400 million of capital
expenditure for the second phase production line in 2015 which is
expected to operate in full-scale in the fourth quarter and enables to
expand the Group's profitability.

The project is financed by internal funds and bank borrowings. As at
31 December 2014, the Group maintained bank balances and cash
of approximately HK$597 million. The Group has sufficient cash and
available banking facilities to meet its future capital expenditure and
working capital requirements.

As always, our management team will leverage on our internal technical
innovation and scientific research and development in a pragmatic and
aggressive approach and continue its persistent efforts to make great
strides in the business development of the Group and deliver fruitful
rewards to the shareholders.
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APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to extend our sincere gratitude to our
shareholders, customers and business partners for their persistent support
throughout the year. In addition, | would also like to take this opportunity
to thank all colleagues and staff for their persistent contribution to the
Group.

On behalf of the Board

Wai Siu Kee
Chairman

Hong Kong, 9 March 2015
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LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED 2 X{t THRA A

Management Discussion and Analysis

BEERWN DT
RESULTS OF OPERATION

Revenue and net profit attributable to equity holders of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2014 was HK$1,560 million and HK$330
million respectively, representing an increase of 17.4% and 6.9%, as
compared to HK$1,329 million and HK$309 million respectively for last
year. The basic earnings per share was HK40 cents for the year ended
31 December 2014 and HK37.4 cents for last year.

Revenue

The increase in revenue for the year was mainly attributable to the stable
economic growth in the PRC, the main products selling price rose during
the year. As compared to last year, the average selling price per ton of
methylene chloride and chloroform, increased by approximately 26.5%
and 41.0% respectively while the selling price per ton of the by-product
of caustic soda remained stable.

In light of the above factors, gross profit margin of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2014 increased from 35.7% of the last year to
41.9%; while the net profit recorded a slight decrease from 23.2% to
21.2%, due to the exchange loss arising from the depreciation of RMB,
which partially offset the growth of the gross profit.

Selling and distribution costs

Selling and distribution costs incurred for the year ended 31 December
2014 was HK$68.48 million, representing an increase by 12.3% as
compared to HK$60.95 million for last year. The increase for the year
mainly attributable to the increase of transportation expenses. The selling
and distribution costs represented about 4.4% of total revenue for the
year, which was broadly stable as compared to 4.6% for last year.
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Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses incurred for the year ended 31 December 2014
was HK$140 million, which increased by HK$36 million approximately
as compared to HK$104 million last year. The increase for the year was
mainly attributable to the exchange loss arising from the depreciation of
RMB.

Finance costs

The interest expenses incurred for the year ended 31 December 2014
was HK$37.3 million, which decreased by HK$11.1 million as compared
to HK$48.4 million last year. Interest expenses dropped during the year
was mainly due to the part of bank borrowing used for the construction
of property, plant and equipment and its related interests was capitalised.
As at 31 December 2014, the total bank borrowings was HK$1,939
million (31.12.2013: HK$1,672 million). As at 31 December 2014, the
Group maintained bank balances and cash of approximately HK$597
million (31.12.2013: HK$1,062 million) which is sufficient to enable
the Group to meet its future capital expenditure and working capital
requirements.

INVENTORIES, DEBTORS’ AND CREDITORS’ TURNOVER

The inventory turnover of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2014 was 57 days, which increased by 16 days as compared to 41 days
for last year.

Due to the stringent credit control, the average collection period was
controlled within a favourable level of 30 days for the year ended 31
December 2014 as compared to 25 days for last year which is in line
with the normal credit terms of 7 days to 60 days granted by the Group
to its customers.

The Group's creditors’ turnover days were 31 days for the year ended
31 December 2014 as compared to 25 days for the last year which is
in line with the normal credit terms of 7 days to 45 days granted by the
suppliers to the group.
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LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED 2 X{t THRA A

Management Discussion and Analysis

BEERWN DT

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The total shareholders’ equity of the Group as at 31 December 2014
was HK$2,298 million (31.12.2013: HK$2,131 million). As at 31
December 2014, the Group had current assets of HK$1,347 million
(31.12.2013: HK$1,552 million) and current liabilities of HK$1,186
million (31.12.2013: HK$951 million). The current ratio was 1.1 as at 31
December 2014 as compared to 1.6 at 31 December 2013.

The Group generally finances its operations with internally generated
cash flow and credit facilities provided by its principal bankers in Hong
Kong and the PRC. As at 31 December 2014, the Group had outstanding
bank borrowings of HK$1,939 million (31.12.2013: HK$1,672 million).
These bank loans were secured by corporate guarantees provided by
the Company and its certain subsidiaries. As at 31 December 2014,
the Group maintained bank balances and cash of HK$597 million
(31.12.2013: HK$1,062 million). The Group's net debt-to-equity ratio
(total borrowings net of cash and cash equivalents over shareholders’
equity) as at 31 December 2014 was 58% (31.12.2013: 28%).

The Group's liquidity position remains strong and the Group possesses
sufficient cash and available banking facilities to meet its commitments,
working capital requirements and future investments for expansion.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had a workforce of about 1,400
people. Salaries of employees are maintained at competitive level and
are reviewed annually, with close reference to the relevant labour market
and economic situation. The Group also provides internal training to
staff and provides bonuses based upon staff performance and profits
of the Group. The Group has not experienced any significant problems
with its employees or disruption to its operations due to labour disputes
nor has it experienced any difficulty in the recruitment and retention
of experienced staff. The Group maintains a good relationship with its
employees.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERWME

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance. The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company
believes that sound and reasonable corporate governance practices
are essential for the growth of the Group and for safeguarding and
maximizing shareholders’ interests. On 1 April 2012, the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices (“Former CG Code") contained in
Appendix 14 to the Rules governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) was amended and
renamed as Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report (“New CG Code"). The Board is committed to complying with
the code provisions as stated in the New CG code to the extent that
the directors of the Company (“Directors”) consider it is applicable and
practical to the Company.

The Company has complied with New CG Code during the year of 2014,
except for the following deviation:

The Group has an Executive Chairman. No individual has been appointed
as a chief executive officer before 1 August 2014. The Executive
Chairman with the assistance of the Group's senior management team
oversees and manages the Group's business. Other functions normally
undertaken by a chief executive officer of a company are delegated
to members of the Group's senior management team. This structure
deviates from the code provision of Code that requires the roles of
the chairman and the chief executive officer to be separate and not
performed by the same individual. The Board has considered this
matter carefully and decided to adopt the provision. On 1 August 2014,
Mr. Lee Man Yan has been appointed as the chief executive officer of
the Company. The Chairman provides leadership to and oversees the
effective functioning of the Board, while the Chief Executive Officer
monitors the Group's senior management team and focuses on the day-
to-day operations of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers ("Model Code") as set out in Appendix 10
of the Listing Rules as a code of conduct regarding directors’ securities
transactions in 2004. All the members of the Board have confirmed,
following specific enquiry by the Company that they have complied
with the required standard as set out in the Model Code throughout the
year ended 31 December 2014. The Model Code also applies to other
specified senior management of the Group.
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Corporate Governance Report
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition and role
The Board comprises:

Executive director
Ms. Wai Siu Kee (Chairman)
Mr. Lee Man Yan
(appointed as Chief Executive Officer on 1 August 2014)
Mr. Yang Zuo Ning
Ms. Wong Yuet Ming

Independent non-executive director
Mr. Wong Kai Tung, Tony

Mr. Wan Chi Keung, Aaron BBS JP

Mr. Heng Victor Ja Wei

The Board comprises four executive directors (one of whom is the
Chairman and one of whom is the Chief Executive Officer) and three
independent non-executive directors. The three independent non-
executive directors represent more than one-third of the Board. In
addition, three of the independent non-executive directors possess
appropriate legal, professional accounting qualifications and financial
management expertise.

The principal focus of the Board is on the overall strategic development
of the Group. The Board also monitors the financial performance and the
internal controls of the Group's business operations.

The independent non-executive directors also serve the important
function of ensuring and monitoring the basis for an effective corporate
governance framework. The Board considers that each independent non-
executive director is independent in character and judgment and that
they all meet the specific independence criteria as required by the Listing
Rules. The Company has received from each independent non-executive
director an annual confirmation or confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The independent non-
executive directors are explicitly identified in all of the Company's corporate
communications.

The Chairman is primarily responsible for drawing up and approving the
agenda for each board meeting in consultation with all directors. Notice
of at least 14 days have been given to all directors for all regular board
meetings and the directors can include matters for discussion in the
agenda if necessary. Agenda and accompanying board papers in respect
of regular board meetings are sent out in full to all directors within
reasonable time before the meeting. Draft minutes of all board meetings
are circulated to directors for comment within a reasonable time prior to
confirmation.
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Minutes of board meetings and meetings of board committees are kept
by duly appointed secretaries of the respective meetings and all directors
have access to board papers and related materials, and are provided with
adequate information in a timely manner, which enable the Board to
make an informed decision on matters placed before it.

During the year under review, seven full board meetings were held and
the individual attendance of each director is set out below:
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Number of board
meetings attended

Name of director EEpE HESRRE
Ms. Wai Siu Kee wmimut 7
Mr. Lee Man Yan FNREE 7
Mr. Yang Zuo Ning BIEELE 5
Ms. Wong Yuet Ming T AL+ 6
Mr. Wong Kai Tung, Tony ETRERESE 6
Mr. Wan Chi Keung, Aaron BBS JP FERIEBBSK F1+ 6
Mr. Heng Victor Ja Wei R4S HE 6

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The Company has established the Nomination Committee with specific
written terms of reference. It comprises 4 members, namely, Ms. Wai Siu
Kee (Chairman of the Nomination Committee), Mr. Wong Kai Tung, Tony,
Mr. Wan Chi Keung, Aaron and Mr. Heng Victor Ja Wei. For appointment
of new Director, the background, experience, professional skills, availability
to commit to the affairs of the Company and, in case of independent
non-executive director, the independence requirements set out in the
Listing Rules, of the potential appointee will be taken into consideration.

Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company, all newly
appointed director of the Company shall hold office until the next annual
general meeting ("AGM") and shall then be eligible for re-election. Every
Director, including those appointed for a specific term shall be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years at the AGM. The
retiring Directors shall be eligible for re-election.

The Company's circular to be despatched to shareholders of the

Company will contain detailed information of the Directors standing for
re-election.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established in 2001 and its current members
include:

Mr. Heng Victor Ja Wei (Chairman)
Mr. Wong Kai Tung, Tony
Mr. Wan Chi Keung, Aaron BBS JP

The Board considers that each Audit Committee member has broad
commercial experience and there is a suitable mix of expertise in
accounting, business and legal on the Audit Committee. The composition
and members of the Audit Committee complies with the requirements
under Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules. The new written terms of reference
which describe the authority and duties of the Audit Committee were
adopted in March 2012 to conform to the provisions of the New CG
Code, a copy of which is posted on the Company's website.

The Audit Committee meets regularly to review the Group's financial
reporting and other information to shareholders, the system of internal
controls, risk management and the effectiveness and objectiveness of
the audit process. The Audit Committee also provides an important
link between the Board and the Company's auditors in matters coming
within the scope of its terms of reference and keeps under review the
independence and objectivity of the auditors.

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group and discussed internal
controls and financial reporting matters including a review of the accounts
for the year ended 31 December 2014.

During the year, three Audit Committee meetings were held and the
individual attendance of each member is set out below:
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Mr. Heng Victor Ja Wei TR T L 3
Mr. Wong Kai Tung, Tony TRUCGR A 3
Mr. Wan Chi Keung, Aaron BBS JP FERFHEBBS KA1 3
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established in 2005 and its current
members include:

Mr. Heng Victor Ja Wei (Chairman)
Mr. Wong Kai Tung, Tony
Mr. Wan Chi Keung, Aaron BBS JP

All members of the Remuneration Committee are independent non-
executive directors. The Remuneration Committee advises the Board
on the Group's overall policy and structure for the remuneration of
directors and senior management. The Remuneration Committee
ensures that no director or any of his associate is involved in deciding
his own remuneration. The new terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee were adopted in March 2012 to conform to the provisions of
the New CG Code, a copy of which is posted on the Company's website.

In determining the emolument payable to directors, the Remuneration
Committee takes into consideration factors such as salaries paid by
comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities of the
directors, employment conditions elsewhere in the Group and the
desirability of performance-based remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee has met during the year to determine
the policy for the remuneration of directors and assess performance of
executive directors and certain senior management and all members
have attended in the meeting.

Auditors’ Remuneration

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the auditors of the Company
only provided audit services to the Company.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established in March 2012 and its
current members include:

Ms. Wai Siu Kee (Chairman)

Mr. Heng Victor Ja Wei

Mr. Wong Kai Tung, Tony

Mr. Wan Chi Keung, Aaron BBS JP

The majority members are independent non-executive directors. The
Nomination Committee has the duty of reviewing annually the board
structure and composition.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee were adopted in
March 2012 to confirm to the provision of the New CG Code, a copy of
which is posted on the Company’s website.

The Nomination Committee has met during the year to approve and
adopt its terms of reference, all members have attended in the meeting.

BOARD DIVERSITY

During the year, the Company continued to monitor the board
composition with regard to its diversity policy which requires board
appointments to be made based on merit and candidates to be
considered against an objective criteria, including diversity. In order to
maintain an appropriate mix and balance of talent, skills, experience
and background on the Board, the Nomination Committee developed
measurable objectives to implement this policy and monitored progress
towards achieving these objectives during the year ended 31 December
2014.

The current board composition was also evaluated by reference to,
among other things, the age, gender, cultural and educational background
and professional experience of each director, against the Company's
business model and specific needs.

The directors of the Company believes diversity is important to enhance
the Board's effectiveness by encouraging a diversity of perspectives and
to maintain high standards of corporate governance. The directors of
the Company will continue to monitor and develop new objectives for
implanting and achieving improved diversity on the Board as and when it
considers appropriate with regard to the specific needs of the Company
and the market from time to time.
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TRAINING FOR DIRECTORS

Each newly appointed Director receives comprehensive, formal and
tailored induction on his appointment, so as to ensure that he has
appropriate understanding of the business and operations of the Group
and that he is fully aware of his responsibilities and obligations under
the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory requirements. There are also
arrangements in place for providing continuing briefing and professional
development to Directors at the Company’s expenses whenever
necessary.

The Company provides regular updates and presentations on changes
and developments relating to the Group's business and the legislative
and regulatory environments to the Directors at Board meetings or
through emails.

The Directors are committed to complying with Code Provision A.6.5 of
the New CG Code which came into effect on 1 April 2012 on Directors’
training. All Directors have participated in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills and
provided a record of training they received for the year ended 31
December 2014 to the Company. The type of training received is
summarized below:

—  reading regulatory updates; and

— attending seminars/forum/workshops relevant to the directors’
duties.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Wong Yuet Ming joined the Group in 2004 and has been the
company secretary of the company since 2006. She is responsible
for advising the Board on governance matters and facilitates induction
and professional development of the Directors. The appointment and
dismissal of the company secretary are subject to the Board approval in
accordance with the Articles of Association. Pursuant to Rule 3.29 of the
Listing Rules which came into effect on 1 January 2012, the company
secretary has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training
in the year under review.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board has overall responsibility for the system of internal controls of
the Group and for reviewing its effectiveness. The Board is committed
to implementing an effective and sound internal controls system to
safeguard the interest of shareholders and the Group's assets. The
Board has delegated to executive management the implementation of
the system of internal controls and reviewing of all relevant financial,
operational, compliance controls and risk management function within an
established framework.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The directors are responsible for the preparation of accounts for each
financial period which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the Group and of the results and cash flow for that period. In preparing
the accounts for the year ended 31 December 2014, the directors have
selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently;
adopted appropriate Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and Hong
Kong Accounting Standards; made adjustments and estimates that are
prudent and reasonable; and have prepared the accounts on the going
concern basis. The directors are also responsible for keeping proper
accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time
the financial position of the Group.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

The Company has only one class of shares. All shares have the same
voting rights and are entitled to the dividend declared. The rights of the
shareholders of the Company (“Shareholders”) are set out in Company’s
Articles or Association.

Shareholders of the Company can: (i) convene an extraordinary general
meeting; (i) forward enquiries to the board of directors; (iii) forward
proposals at shareholders’ meetings and (iv) nominate Directors for
election. Details of relevant procedures are available on the Company’s
website.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION

The Board is committed to providing clear and full information about the
Group's performance to shareholders through the publication of interim
results and annual results in a timely manner. In addition to dispatching
circulars, notices and financial reports to shareholders, additional
information is also available to shareholders on the website of the
Company.

The annual general meeting provides a useful platform for shareholders
to raise comments and exchange views with the Board. Shareholders are
encouraged to attend annual general meetings for which the Company
gives at least 21 days' notice. The Chairman and Directors and external
auditors are available to answer questions on the Company's businesses
at the meeting.

Separate resolutions are proposed at the general meetings on each
substantially separate issue, including the election of individual
directors. In addition, poll voting procedure is included in the circular to
shareholders dispatched together with the annual report.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no significant change in the Company’s constitutional
documents for the year ended 31 December 2014.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

EERSREEEEHN

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Ms. WAI Siu Kee, aged 70, Chairman of the Company who joined the
Group since its establishment in 1976. She is also the founder, chairman
and chief executive officer of Lee & Man Handbags Holding Limited
(Stock Code: 1488). Ms. Wai has more than 49 years of experience in
the manufacturing industry. She is responsible for the development of
corporate strategies, corporate planning and overall management of the
Group and in particular the marketing and development of the business
of the Group. Ms. Wai is the honorary permanent president of the Hong
Kong Baptist University Foundation. Ms. Wai is the mother of Mr. Lee
Man Yan, the Executive Director and Chief Executive Office of the Group.

Mr. LEE Man Yan, aged 37, the member of Chinese People's Political
Consultative Committee of Jiangxi and Chief Executive Office of the
Group. He joined the Group in 2000. Mr. Lee is in charge of the
corporate and strategic planning of the chemical business segment, and
is responsible for the procurement, staff recruitment, public relations
in the PRC and management operations of the chemical business.
He graduated from the University of British Columbia, Canada with a
bachelor's degree in commerce. Mr. Lee was awarded Young Industrialist
Award of Hong Kong 2013 and Young Entrepreneur Award 2013. He is
appointed as member of Court of the Hong Kong Baptist University and
Committee Member of Hong Kong Young Industrialists Council. Mr. Lee is
a son of Ms. Wai Siu Kee, the Group's Chairman.

Mr. YANG Zuo Ning, aged 53, an Executive Director and Deputy
Managing Director of the Group. He joined the Group in 2006. He is
a national acclaimed senior engineer and has 32 years of production
experience in chlor-alkali industries. He is responsible for the production
supervision, corporate strategic planning and general management of
Jiangsu Lee & Man Chemical Limited and Jiangxi Lee & Man Chemical
Limited.

Ms. WONG Yuet Ming, aged 50, an Executive Director, Financial
Controller and Company Secretary of the Group. She is also the company
secretary of Lee & Man Handbags Holding Limited (Stock Code: 1488).
She joined the Group in 2004 and has over 25 years of experience
in the field of auditing and accounting. She holds a master's degree in
business administration from the University of Surrey, United Kingdom.
Ms. Wong is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. She is responsible for the supervision and
management of the Group's financial matters.
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EERSREEERG[N
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. WONG Kai Tung, Tony, aged 72, an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Group. He has been a practicing lawyer in Hong Kong
since 1968 and has also been admitted as a solicitor in England and
Wales. He is currently a consultant at Messrs. Hastings & Co., Solicitors
and Notaries.

Mr. WAN Chi Keung, Aaron BBS, JP, aged 65, an Independent Non-
Executive Director of the Group. He holds a Master Degree in Business
Administration of the Chinese University of Hong Kong and a Master
Degree in Buddhist studies of the University of Hong Kong, also an
associate of the Institution of Business Agents, a member of the Land
Institute (London), an associate of the Chartered Institute of Arbitrators,
a fellow of The Institute of Administrative Accounting and a fellow of The
Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors. He is engaged in the business
of property and chattel valuation and auction and has over 31 years of
related experience. Mr. Wan serves as an independent non-executive
director in CNC Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 8356).

Mr. HENG Victor Ja Wei, aged 37, an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Group. He is a partner of Morison Heng, Certified Public
Accountants. He holds a master of science degree of the Imperial College
of Science, Technology and Medicine, the University of London. He is
a member of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and
member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Mr. Heng serves as an independent non-executive director in China Fire
Safety Enterprise Group Limited (Stock Code: 0445), Matrix Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 1005) and Lee & Man Handbags Holding Limited
(Stock Code: 1488). He also serves as the company secretary and
authorized representative of China Life Insurance Company Limited (Stock
Code: 2628).
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. LAM Hiu Fung, aged 44, Deputy Financial Controller of the Group.
He joined the Group in 2005 and has 21 years of experience in financial
management. He holds a bachelor's degree in Accountancy from City
University of Hong Kong and a master's degree in International Business
from the Chinese University of Hong Kong. He is a fellow member of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and an associate
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He
is responsible for the supervision on the financial matters, tax issues and
general management of Jiangsu Lee & Man Chemical Limited.

Mr. HUI Jun, Dan, aged 60, Sales Director of the Group. He joined the
Group in 2005 and has over 33 years experience in sales, marketing and
business development in overseas and PRC enterprises. He is responsible
for developing the Company's sales strategies, exploring potential markets
and logistics management of Jiangsu Lee & Man Chemical Limited.

Mr. XIA Xu Dong, aged 40, Director of Production of Jiangsu Lee &
Man Chemical Ltd. He joined the Group in 2006 and has 18 years of
production experience in chlor-alkali industries. He is responsible for the
production and general management of Jiangsu Lee & Man Chemical
Limited.

Dr. TSE Man Kin, aged 43, Director of Research & Development of the
Group. He joined the Group in 2008 and has 20 years of experience
in chemical research and research management. He holds a Ph.D in
Chemistry from the Chinese University of Hong Kong and is a member
of the American Chemical Society. He is responsible for the research and
development of the Group.

Mr. WU Zeng Long, aged 45, Director of Sales of Jiangsu Lee & Man
Chemical Limited. He joined the Group in 2007 and has 22 years of
experience in sales, marketing and business development. He holds a
bachelor's degree in applied chemistry. He is responsible for sales and
logistics activities of Jiangsu Lee & Man Chemical Limited.

Mr. CHEAH Ming Huat, aged 42, Financial Controller of Jiangxi Lee
& Man Chemical Limited. He joined the Group in 2011 and has 17
years of experience in financial management. He is a fellow member
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and chartered
accountant of Malaysian Institute of Accountants. He is responsible for
the supervision on the financial matters, treasure management, internal
control, tax issues and general management of Jiangxi Lee & Man
Chemical Limited.
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The directors present their directors’ report and the audited consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company and the Group is
principally engaged in the manufacture and sale of chemical products.

The activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 35 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 29.

An interim dividend of HK7 cents per share amounting to
HK$57,750,000 in aggregate was paid to the shareholders during the
year.

The directors now recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK8
cents per share to the shareholders whose names appear on the register
of members on 26 May 2015, amounting to HK$66,000,000 in total,
and the retention of the remaining profit for the year of HK$206,361,000.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year, the Group acquired property, plant and equipment at a
cost of approximately HK$889,153,000 for the purpose of expanding its
business. Details of these and other movements in the property, plant
and equipment of the Group during the year are set out in note 14 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive directors
Ms. Wai Siu Kee (Chairman)
Mr. Lee Man Yan
(appointed as Chief Executive Officer on 1 August 2014)
Mr. Yang Zuo Ning
Ms. Wong Yuet Ming

Independent non-executive directors
Mr. Wong Kai Tung, Tony

Mr. Wan Chi Keung, Aaron BBS JP

Mr. Heng Victor Ja Wei

In accordance with the provisions of the Company's Articles of Association,
Mr. Lee Man Yan, Mr. Yang Zuo Ning and Ms. Wong Yuet Ming will retire
at the forthcoming annual general meeting and being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election.

The term of office of each of the other independent non-executive
directors is the period up to his retirement as required by the Company’s
Articles of Association.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Ms. Wai Siu Kee has entered into a service agreement with the Company
on 1 September 2014 for a period of 3 years, which will continue
thereafter unless and until terminated by either party by three months’
prior written notice.

Mr. Lee Man Yan has entered into a service agreement with the Company
for an initial period of three years commencing 16 August 2013, which
will continue thereafter unless and until terminated by either party by
three months' prior written notice.

Mr. Yang Zuo Ning and Ms. Wong Yuet Ming have each renewed into
a service agreement with the Company for a fixed term of one year
commencing 27 June 2014, which will be terminated by either party by
three months' prior written notice.

21

Annual Report 2014 F 3§

EF

RAFERBERNRERL ARFZES
=2

YITESE
BLB R (FE)
ENALE
(R2014F8 A 1 HEZ(FAEEHITE)
BIEE e
TAPLZL

BYKEHTES
TR E

F o8 e EBBS A FAb 1
TSR e e £

REARFEABKEREMAA  TXBEE B
EELRERT ARARTAREERRBF K
SEE  HRFHRERLBEBEEET -

BUFNTEFZEY  EEHAREAR
AABERRARIZ R ERERLE

ESZHRHBEN

BB LT 2014F9 A 1 HERNFFI R
i BE3E  WE—EHFE BRIERE
ERA—FmBR—ABE=EASEAERR
T LALIEALE ©

EXBRAECTEARRR T RIE R - FH
F2013F8 A 16 BB AHI3F « E—HF
B BRIENREEFN AR AL =
AEREEBMNFTALLEAL -

BIEERENT ARZEREBMN2014F6 A
27HBEARRRENALRG H - RI1F
MERM—ARAZS—HEL=EAEMEEE
FNRF LA L -



LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED 2 X{t THRA A

Directors’ Report
EETHRE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

At 31 December 2014, the interests and short positions of directors
and chief executives of the Company and their associates in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Future Ordinance
(the "SFO")) which have been notified to the Company and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the
register required to be kept pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the "Model Code") of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) were as follows:

(a) Long positions in shares of the Company

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company

Number of issued

ESERRHRERKRGPZER

R2014F 128318 ARAZSEERES
THAB RS B8 ARAR B R EIGH
FE(EERBEHFMBEGA(BHFRBEK
1) EBXVER) MR 15 RABRANR (D - B IZA
BIEEE RS EGIEXVIET 8D EE M
SARNRNEBHAERIMABR AR ([HR
FTMBBERSIAR  RERHEIIBREE
S5 RAIEGRAIEISGEFE B M - B2
IR R ATEH EmRA(T LKA 2 &
MAREBEITEFR HZIZETR([1ZE
PR me AR E KB R AT 2 HEas OA B
T

(a) REQIARMBZHFE
KRB0 VBT 2 L@

Percentage of
the issued share capital

Name of director Capacity ordinary shares held of the Company
EEpA =37 e 81T EARRAH
ZERHE ERITRAFOL
Lee Man Yan Held by controlled corporation 618,750,000 75%
(note)
FXR HEEEERE (Btat)

note: These shares are held by Fortune Star Tradings Ltd (“Fortune Star").

(b) Share options

Number of ordinary

Mfat - £t B 5 Ty B Fortune Star Tradings Ltd.
([Fortune Star] )35 -

(b) B

Percentage of

shares subject the issued share capital

Name of director Capacity to options granted of the Company

ERHBRE EART
EEpA =37 ZEBREE ERTRAESLE
Lee Man Yan Beneficial Owner 82,500,000 10%
PR EmEA A
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ESRRNRERKRGRZER(E)

(c) Long positions in shares of the associated corporations of (c) RAQFEELE 2RO FE
the Company

Percentage

Name of of the issued shares

associated Number of issued of the associated

Name of Director Capacity company ordinary shares held company

FriFE 1T 1R AREBEE

EEpnA 8% HEEE B HERHE ERITRAFOLE

Lee Man Yan Beneficial owner Fortune Star 45 (note) 45%
FXR BEmEAA (B1t)

note: As Fortune Star owns more than 50% of the Company, Fortune Star is an
associated corporation of the Company under the SFO. The issued share capital
of Fortune Star is owned by Mr. Lee Man Yan, a Director, as to 45% and Mr. Lee
Wan Keung as to the remaining 55%. Ms. Wai Siu Kee is a director of Fortune
Star.

Other than disclosed above, none of the directors or the chief executive,
or any of their associates, had any interests or short positions in any
shares and underlying shares of the Company or any of its associated
corporations, which had to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, or which
were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein or which were required, pursuant to the Model
Code, to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

SHARE OPTIONS

A share option scheme was adopted by the Company on 14 December
2001, under which the directors or the chief executive of the Company
or their associates may be granted options to subscribe for shares in the
Company.

Details of the share option scheme and movement of the share options
during the year are set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Other than the share option scheme disclosed above, at no time during
the year was the Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries
and fellow subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable the
directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.
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Directors’ Report
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

At 31 December 2014, shareholders (other than directors and chief
executive of the Company) who had interests and short positions in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company which have been disclosed
to the Company under the provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Long positions

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company

Number of issued

FERR

MN2014FE 128310 RE(ARQRARIEERS
STHBABBRINAARRNT Z B MIAREIL (5
o BEREES M EEAEXVEBE2R3
DEBAANBHWE - KD IRIEES
MRS DI 3361KBM AR RFE 2 Bl
ZRERIEKBWT

wE

Percentage of
the issued share capital

Name of shareholders Capacity ordinary shares held of the Company
MREREE -37) e 81T RN

HERHE ERITRAEOLE
Fortune Star Beneficial owner 618,750,000 75%

BEmfBA

Other than disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, the Company
has not been notified by any persons (other than directors and chief
executives of the Company) who had interests or short positions in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provision of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions for the year are set out in note 33
to the consolidated financial statements which are also the discloseable
connected transaction pursuant to Listing Rules. In the opinion of the
independent non-executive directors, these transactions entered into by
the Group were:

(i) inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(i) either (a) on normal commercial terms; or (b) where there was no
available comparison, on terms that were fair and reasonable so far
as the shareholders of the Company were concerned;

(i) either (a) in accordance with the terms of the agreements; or (b)
where there were no such agreements, on terms no less favourable
than those available to or from independent third parties; and

(iv) within the relevant cap amounts as agreed by the Stock Exchange.

Save as disclosed above, there were no other transactions which need

to be disclosed as connected transactions in accordance with the
requirements of the Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Other than as disclosed under the heading “Connected transactions”, no
contracts of significance to which the Company, its holding company or
any of its fellow subsidiaries and subsidiaries was a party and in which
a director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly and
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

MAIJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the aggregate sales attributable to the Group's five
largest customers were less than 30% of total turnover.

The aggregate purchases during the year attributable to the Group's five
largest suppliers were approximately 66% of the Group's total purchases
and the purchases attributable to the Group's largest supplier were
approximately 3 1% of the Group's total purchases.

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholders which, to the
knowledge of the directors, owned more than 5% of the Company's
issued share capital had any interest in the share capital of any of the five
largest customers of the Group.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company's
Articles of Association, or the laws of the Cayman lIslands, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive
directors, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule

3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the independent
non-executive directors are independent.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications and
competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are decided by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company's operating
results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to
directors and eligible employees. Details of the scheme are set out in
note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

According to the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors, the Company has maintained
a sufficient public float throughout the year ended 31 December 2014.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting to re-
appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Wai Siu Kee

CHAIRMAN

Hong Kong, 9 March 2015
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Independent Auditor’s Report
Y8 M A% BAD

Deloitte.
=)

TO THE MEMBERS OF LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Lee & Man
Chemical Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 29 to 113,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2014, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. We conducted
our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditor's Report
18 M A% BRI 5

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY (CONTINUED)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 December 2014, and of
its profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 9 March 2015
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
ceBEakHEMEEKRAR

(For the year ended 31 December 2014) (EZE2014F12A3181EFE)

2014 2013
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Hiat THET FHTT
Revenue WA 5&6 1,560,028 1,329,131
Cost of sales SHE KA (906,101) (855,224)
Gross profit EA 653,927 473,907
Other income HA YA 7 86,245 177,449
Net gain from fair value changes on derivative #7448 T A X FEESH)
financial instruments 2R 3,911 13,967
Selling and distribution costs SHE R SHA AR (68,480) (60,954)
General and administrative expenses 1THER (140,144) (104,120)
Research and development cost IRID RN (83,904) (77,393)
Finance costs BLE KR 9 (37,336) (48,359)
Share of (loss) profit of joint ventures FEIEE & b3 (B8 )R F (2,749) 460
Profit before taxation KRB BT 411,470 374,957
Income tax expense Fris iz 8 (81,359) (66,225)
Profit for the year F 1A% ) 9 330,111 308,732
Other comprehensive (expense) income  H{th2E (X H) ik
ltems that will not be reclassified to TEEFHEE B
profit or loss: ZIHEA :
Exchange differences arising on translation R E i EE B E X Z5 (49,392) 41,273
Net gain on hedging instruments in BendhTE
cash flow hedges 2 Was 2,136 4514
Other comprehensive (expense) FREM ()W
income for the year (47,256) 45,787
Total comprehensive income for the year FREEWREE 282,855 354,519
Earnings per share GRZEH) 10
Basic (HK cents) EARGE) 40.0 37.4
Diluted (HK cents) 5 (L) 40.0 37.4
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(At 31 December 2014) (H20149F12A318)

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment

Prepaid lease payments

Investment property

Intangible assets

Deposits paid for the acquisition of property,
plant and equipment

Interests in joint ventures

Other deposits

Derivative financial instruments

Deferred tax asset

CURRENT ASSETS

Inventories

Prepaid lease payments

Trade and other receivables
Loan to a joint venture

Amount due from a joint venture
Derivative financial instruments
Bank balances and cash

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables

Amount due to a related company
Taxation payable

Derivative financial instruments

Bank borrowings — due within 1 year

NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES

FRBEE
M - R MR
BHEERE

TE M
EREE
BEME - BEMEE
ZBMHETE
REDEZER
HihETE
PTHESmMTIA
BRI E E

RBEE

&

BENEEFER

FEWE 5 N B 508

BELECZER
BELE L EKFIA

TEERTA

RITHEBR MRS

RBRE
EH%%&ﬁ@m
FEfRE A RIFIR
FEfTRIR
ITESMIA
RITER— 15FAEIE

REBEEFE

REERRBAE
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Notes
Kzt

14
15
16
17

18

22

19

15
20
21
21
22
23

24
25

22
26

2014
HK$'000
FTET

2,929,545
78,890
48,953

4,945

216,983
24,143
38,197

31
25,349

3,367,036

165,390
1,877
474,993
91,103
15,625
1,269
596,752

1,347,009

439,983
4,047
28,001
4,621
709,695

1,186,347

160,662

3,527,698

2013
HK$'000
TAT

2,251,570
82,109
48,470

6,282

178,326
27,338
2,038
360
26,372

2,622,865

116,578
1,913
270,470
83,353
15,927
2,024
1,061,504

1,551,769

327,799
2,938
38,289
502
581,414

950,942

600,827

3,223,692



NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Bank borrowings — due after 1 year
Derivative financial instruments

NET ASSETS

CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Share capital
Reserves

The consolidated financial statements on pages 29 to 113 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 9 March

2015 and are signed on its behalf by:

Wai Siu Kee
BOH
CHAIRMAN
FE

FRBEE
RITIER— 1512 2IHA
TEERTA

AEEFE
EXRf#E

LN
G
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2014 2013

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Kzt FERT FET
26 1,229,347 1,090,273
22 388 2,811

1,229,735 1,093,084

2,297,963 2,130,608

27 82,500 82,500
2,215,463 2,048,108

2,297,963 2,130,608

F20BEFV13EME LAV B RERER
2015F3A0RKEETERIB MR EEIL A
THEERREE :

Lee Man Yan
=3
DIRECTOR
EF



LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED I2I{t THERAE

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEEREEIR

(For the year ended 31 December 2014)

(BZE2014F12A31BILFE)

Non- Safety Share
Share Share  distributable fund  Translation Hedging options Special  Accumulated
capital ~ premium reserve reserve feserve feserve reserve reserve profits Total
AR 22
e REE fE  EABRE  ENRE  HMEBE  BRERE  BARE 2R ait
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT B¥Tn RETn #¥Tn BETr T BT BT BT BT
(note') (note i)
(i) (Hicti)

At 1 January 2013 R201351 818 82,500 20,307 166,640 16,644 139,849 (7,466) 157,430 (97362) 1415297 1,893,839
Exchange differences arising from translation EREMELNEL R - - - - 41273 - - - - 41273
Net adjustment on cash flow hedges Benin Ense - - - - - 4514 - - = 4514
Other comprehensive income for the year FREBRARE - - - - 41273 4514 - - - 45787
Proftfor the year FREF = - - - - - - - 308,732 308,732
Total comprehensive income for the year FREENEEE - - - - 41273 4514 - - 308,732 354519
Recognition of equiy-setled share-based ERNRTEE AER

payments 2% - - - - - - 6,000 - - 6,000
Cash dividends recognised as distibution (Note 1) BERDRZBEREHE11) - - - - - - - - (I3750)  (123750)
Transfer to non-disrbutzble reserve fund E\TTAREREER - - 37,701 - - - - - (37,701) -
Transfer from safety fund resenve BR2EGHEEA - - - (833) - - - - 833 -
At31 December 2013 R2013E128318 82,500 20307 204341 15811 181,122 (2952) 163,430 (97362) 1563411 2,130,608
Exchange differences arising from translation RREmEENELZE = = = = (49392) = = = = (49392)
Net adjustment on cash flow hedges ReRih AR - - - - - 2136 - - - 21%
Other comprehensive (expense) income EREpRE(ZE)RE

forthe year - - - - (49392) 2136 - - - (47.256)
Proftfor the year FREF = - - - - - - = 30,111 30,111
Total comprehensive (expense) income for the year — ERZTE (S WS LE - = = = (49392) 2136 = = 30,111 282,855
Release upon deregistraion of a subsidiary tzraalil) YN i = - - - (1,029) - - - 1029 -
Cash dividends recognised as distibution (Note 17)  BEZDRZAERE W11 - - - - - - - - (115500)  (115500)
Transfer to non-distibutable reserve fund a\FIHREEEE - = 47278 = = = = = (47278) =
Transfer to safety fund resenve B\ZRELERE = - - 1777 - - - - () -
At31 December 2014 H014E 128318 0500 20307 5169 1758 130701 @16) 163430 (7360  17299% 2297963
notes: HiF
@) According to the relevant laws in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC"), wholly () WEFEAREMB((FE]DBEEE  EFED

foreign-owned enterprises in the PRC are required to transfer at least 10% of their net
profits after taxation, as determined under the PRC accounting regulations, to a non-
distributable reserve fund until the reserve balance reaches 50% of their registered
capital. The transfer to this reserve must be made before the distribution of a dividend
to equity owners. The non-distributable reserve fund can be used to offset the previous
years' losses, if any. The non-distributable reserve fund is non-distributable other than
upon liquidation.

(i)  The special reserve of the Group represents the difference between the nominal value

of the share capital issued by the Company and the nominal value of the share capital
of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to a group reorganisation in December 2001.
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(For the year ended 31 December 2014) (EZE2014F12A3181EFE)

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before taxation

Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Share-based payment expense
Finance costs
Release of prepaid lease payments
Amortisation of intangible assets
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Net gain from fair value changes on derivative

financial instruments

Interest income

Share of loss (profit) of joint ventures

Operating cash flows before movements in working
capital

Increase in inventories

Increase in trade and other receivables

Increase in trade and other payables

Increase in derivative financial instruments

Increase (decrease) in amount due to a related

company

Cash generated from operations

Income tax paid

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

RERK
BRI
SR -
VxE  BEEREBINE
Bein XA
BE A
BENHEERZBH
BB EHH
HEWE - BELREER
TEESRMIARNTES
ZFN R
FEHA
e L hEER(FIE)

e 5 I EL At 5K B AN
PR 5 K B Aty SRIALE AN
$TH S B T A1
FERTRRZE R R IR
12O A)

REXGBRS
EfNAEHE

REXBRERSFH
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2014
HK$'000
FTET

411,470

156,246
37,336
1,703
1,236
1,834

(3,911)
(37,506)
2,749

571,157

(45,076)

(194,314)
46,562
8,827

1,109

388,265
(90,567)

297,698

2013
HK$'000
TAT

374,957

119,381
6,000
48,359
1,790
1,227
169

(13,967)
(64,012)
(460)

473,444

(40,325)

(106,355)
28,166
16,612

(4,051)

367,491
(67,422)

300,069



(For the year ended 31 December 2014)

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Deposits paid for acquisition of property, plant and
equipment

Other deposits paid

Loan to a joint venture

Purchase of investment property

Payment for prepaid lease payments

Advance to a joint venture

Government grants received for acquisition of land use

right

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and
equipment

Interest received

Increase in construction payables

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Bank borrowings raised

Settlement of derivative financial instruments under
hedge accounting

Interest paid

Dividends paid

Repayment of bank borrowings

NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING
OF THE YEAR

EFFECT OF CHANGES IN EXCHANGE RATE

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF
THE YEAR

LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED EX{t THRA A

(BZE2014F12A31BILFE)
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2014
HK$'000
FTET

(524,708)
(390,547)
(36,197)

(7,750)
(1,391)

1,478
37,506
81,639

(839,970)

1,043,153

(4,346)
(50,302)
(115,500)
(775,798)

97,207

(445,065)

1,061,504

(19,687)

596,752

2013
HK$'000
FAIT
(569,641)
(377,056)
(2,038)
(18,963)
(48,470)
(60,612)
(9,716)
51,097
160

64,012
143,735

(827,492)

534,510
(5413)
(42,946)
(123,750)
(330,229)

32,172

(495,251)

1,520,219

36,536

1,061,504
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GENERAL

The Company is a public limited company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands under the Companies Law (Revised) Chapter 22 of
the Cayman Islands and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Its ultimate holding
company and immediate parent is Fortune Star Tradings Limited
(“Fortune Star"), a company which is incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands. Its ultimate controlling party is Mr. Lee Wan Keung.
The address of the registered office of the Company is disclosed in
the section “Corporate Information” to the annual report.

The functional currency of the Company is Renminbi (“RMB"), while
the consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars ("HK dollars”) as the Company is listed in Hong Kong.

The Company acts as an investment holding company and the
principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 35.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA").
Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment Entities
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities

Recoverable Amount Disclosures for
Non-Financial Assets

Novation of Derivatives and
Continuation of Hedge
Accounting

Levies

Amendments to HKAS 36

Amendments to HKAS 39

HK(IFRIC) — Int 21

Except as described below, the application of the new and revised
HKFRSs in the current year has had no material impact on the
Group's financial performance and positions for the current and
prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated
financial statements.
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(CONTINUED)

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities

The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify existing application issues
relating to the offset of financial assets and financial liabilities
requirements. Specifically, the amendments clarify the meaning of
“currently has a legally enforceable right of set-off” and “simultaneous
realisation and settlement”. The directors of the Company do not
anticipate that the application of these amendments to HKAS 32
will have a significant impact on the Group's consolidated financial
statements as the Group does not have significant financial assets
and financial liabilities for offset.

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised

FERMETREEATE & M358 &SR
((FEMHHEEN ) (E)

EREMEAENRRZBITLAEHES
MEERSHEAE]

BREGIEREIR BT RESEH
BiETREEREBREBERTCREE
FAFEIRE - Rl R - R EEFTERI B AT

BREERE LR RHIRIT 2 R A | &

BERTREELGRABEE A2
REFRAERAZEE ST ERE32
BT AT EHARE 2R M HR
RBREATE -

ARE B EIRF AT 28/ (A =R

HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRSs

HKFRS 9
HKFRS 14
HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 11
Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 41

Amendments to HKAS 19

Amendments to HKAS 27

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2010-2012 Cycle?

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2011-2013 Cycle!

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2012-2014 Cycle?

Financial Instruments®
Regulatory Deferral Accounts*

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers®

Investment Entities: Applying the
Consolidation Exception?

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture3

Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations?

Disclosure Initiative?

Clarification of Acceptable Methods
of Depreciation and Amortisation?

Agriculture: Bearer Plants®
Defined Benefit Plans: Employee
Contributions’

Equity Method in Separate Financial
Statements?

36

I AT AR BT BB R R -

g CE ]
(B31%)

ERMBRE LA
SCHEN)

g CE ]
(B31%)

BB ISR
el

BT HRE2ER
145

BB IS RS AR
F 155

BB ISR AR
F10% - BAYB
REERIE 125 R
B g ERE28
SR(BRIA)

BB HREEDE
105E R BB G RTHE
BIZE285 (187 A)

BEUHREERE
BEACEHEY)

BT ERE 1R
(1&ETA)

BB GERIE 165
REESHELE
38H(ERTA)

B ERERE 165
REBerEE
ALHCCHEY)

BB GERIE 195
(EFTA)

B GRERIZE275%
(1B3TA)

2010F E2012F
B2 BETISR
EHERIF S 2
201 1EE2013F A
B2 BB R
AR F E e
2012F E2014F
B2 BETISR
EHE R s
SR T As

R
FFARKA

RETE : ERA
HEfIIMRTES

REZEBABLY
RERRZHEM
BEHEIIES

YRGS
MEEHA

EHE R

B
BRI

m¥  EEMHEYS

RERE
R
B RE
HoE



APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(CONTINUED)

1

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014, with limited
exception.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016.

Effective for first annual HKFRS financial statements beginning on or after 1
January 2016.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduced new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9 was
subsequently amended in 2010 to include the requirements for
the classification and measurement of financial liabilities and for
derecognition, and further amended in 2013 to include the new
requirements for general hedge accounting. Another revised version
of HKFRS 9 was issued in 2014 mainly to include a) impairment
requirements for financial assets and b) limited amendments to
the classification and measurement requirements by introducing
a “fair value through other comprehensive income” (“FVTOCI")
measurement category for certain simple debt instruments.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described below:

All recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement are subsequently measured at amortised cost
or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are held within
a business model whose objective is to collect the contractual
cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding
are generally measured at amortised cost at the end of
subsequent accounting periods. Debt instruments that are held
within a business model whose objective is achieved both by
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets,
and that have contractual terms of the financial asset give rise
on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,
are measured at FVTOCI. All other debt investments and
equity investments are measured at their fair values at the
end of subsequent accounting periods. In addition, under
HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable election to present
subsequent changes in the fair value of an equity investment
(that is not held for trading) in other comprehensive income,
with only dividend income generally recognised in profit or
loss.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

Key r

equirements of HKFRS 9 are described below: (Continued)

With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss, HKFRS 9
requires that the amount of change in the fair value of the
financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk
of that liability is presented in other comprehensive income,
unless the recognition of the effects of changes in the liability's
credit risk in other comprehensive income would create or
enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in
fair value of financial liabilities attributable to changes in the
financial liabilities credit risk are not subsequently reclassified
to profit or loss. Under HKAS 39, the entire amount of the
change in the fair value of the financial liability designated as
fair value through profit or loss was presented in profit or loss.

In relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS 9
requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed to an
incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39. The expected
credit loss model requires an entity to account for expected
credit losses and changes in those expected credit losses
at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition. In other words, it is no longer necessary
for a credit event to have occurred before credit losses are
recognised.

The new general hedge accounting requirements retain the
three types of hedge accounting. However, greater flexibility
has been introduced to the types of transactions eligible
for hedge accounting, specifically broadening the types of
instruments that qualify for hedging instruments and the types
of risk components of non-financial items that are eligible for
hedge accounting. In addition, the effectiveness test has been
overhauled and replaced with the principle of an "economic
relationship”. Retrospective assessment of hedge effectiveness
is also no longer required. Enhanced disclosure requirements
about an entity's risk management activities have also been
introduced.
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HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
HKFRS 9 in the future may have a material impact on amounts
reported in respect of the Group's financial assets and financial
liabilities (e.g. the Group's investments in redeemable notes that are
currently classified as available-for-sale investments may have to be
measured at fair value at the end of subsequent reporting periods,
with changes in the fair value being recognised in profit or loss).
Regarding the Group's financial assets, it is not practicable to provide
a reasonable estimate of that effect until a detailed review has been
completed. Changes in fair value of financial liabilities attributable to
changes in credit risk of financial liabilities that are designated as at
fair value through profit or loss are disclosed in note 37.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

In July 2014, HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for revenue
arising from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede the
current revenue recognition guidance including HKAS 18 Revenue,
HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and the related Interpretations
when it becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should recognise
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
Specifically, the Standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue
recognition:

«  Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer
«  Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract
«  Step 3: Determine the transaction price

«  Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract

«  Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a
performance obligation
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(Continued)

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of the
goods or services underlying the particular performance obligation
is transferred to the customer. Far more prescriptive guidance
has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific scenarios.
Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 15.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
HKFRS 15 in the future may have a material impact on the amounts
reported and disclosures made in the Group's consolidated financial
statements. However, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable
estimate of the effect of HKFRS 15 until the Group performs a
detailed review.

The directors anticipate that the application of other new and
revised standards will have no material impact on the results and
the financial position of the Group.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and
by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments that
are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as
explained in the accounting policies set out below. Historical cost
is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in
exchange for goods.
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Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability,
the Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or
liability if market participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a basis,
except for share-based payment transactions that are within the
scope of HKFRS 2, leasing transactions that are within the scope
of HKAS 17, and measurements that have some similarities to fair
value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS
2 or value in use in HKAS 36. In addition, for financial reporting
purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1,
2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to
the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

«  Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date;

«  Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,

either directly or indirectly; and

«  Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company
and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved where the Company:

«  has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

«  has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more
of the three elements of control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting rights of an
investee, it has power over the investee when the voting rights are
sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct the relevant activities
of the investee unilaterally. The Group considers all relevant facts
and circumstances in assessing whether or not the Group's voting
rights in an investee are sufficient to give it power, including:

«  the size of the Group's holding of voting rights relative to the
size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote holders;

«  potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote holders or
other parties;

+  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

« any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the
Group has, or does not have, the current ability to direct the
relevant activities at the time that decisions need to be made,
including voting patterns at previous shareholder's meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control
over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of
the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of subsidiaries
acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from the date the Group gains control until the date when
the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.
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Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line with the
Group's accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Investments in jointly ventures

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have
joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the
joint arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of
control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about
the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the parties
sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of joint ventures are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. The financial statements of
joint ventures used for equity accounting purposes are prepared
using uniform accounting policies as those of the Group for like
transactions and events in similar circumstances. Under the equity
method, an investment in a joint venture is initially recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group's share of the profit or loss and
other comprehensive income of the joint venture. When the Group's
share of losses of a joint venture exceeds the Group's interest in
that joint venture (which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group's net investment in joint venture),
the Group discontinues recognizing its share of further losses.
Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments
on behalf of the joint venture. An investment in a joint venture is
accounted for using the equity method from the date on which the
investee becomes a joint venture. On acquisition of the investment
in a joint venture, any excess of the cost of the investment over
the Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which is
included within the carrying amount of the investment. Any excess
of the Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities over the cost of the investment, after reassessment, is
recognised immediately in profit or loss in the period in which the
investment is acquired.
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LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED EX{t THRA A

(For the year ended 31 December 2014) (#Z=2014F12A3181EFE)

Investments in jointly ventures (Continued)

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine whether it
is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect to the
Group's investment in a joint venture. When necessary, the entire
carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for
impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets as a
single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value
in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount.
Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount
of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised
in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable
amount of the investment subsequently increases.

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method from the
date when the investment ceases to be a joint venture, or when
the investment (or a portion thereof) is classified as held for sale.
When the Group retains an interest in the former joint venture
and the retained interest is a financial asset, the Group measures
the retained interest at fair value at that date and the fair value is
regarded as its fair value on initial recognition in accordance with
HKAS 39. The difference between the carrying amount of the joint
venture at the date the equity method was discontinued, and the
fair value of any retained interest and any proceeds from disposing
of a part interest in the joint venture is included in the determination
of the gain or loss on disposal of the joint venture. In addition, the
Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that joint venture on the
same basis as would be required if that joint venture had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or
loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income by that
joint venture would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal
of the related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or
loss from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment)
when the equity method is discontinued.

When a group entity transacts with a joint venture of the Group (such
as a sale or contribution of assets), profits and losses resulting from
the transactions with the joint venture are recognised in the Group's
consolidated financial statements only to the extent of interests in
the joint venture that are not related to the Group.
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Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated customer returns,
rebates and other similar allowances.

Revenue from the sales of goods is recognised when the goods
are delivered and titles have passed, at which time all the following
conditions are satisfied:

«  the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and
rewards of ownership of the goods;

«  the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement
to the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective
control over the goods sold;

«  the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

« it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
transaction will flow to the Group; and

« the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Deposits and instalments received from purchasers prior to meeting
the above criteria for revenue recognition are included in the
consolidated statement of financial position under current liabilities.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is
accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying
amount on initial recognition.
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LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED EX{t THRA A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

N

(For the year ended 31 December 2014)

3.
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(BZE2014F12A31BILFE)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, including buildings held for use in
the production of goods or for administrative purposes (other than
construction in progress) are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation
and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Properties, plant and machinery in the course of construction for
production or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any
recognised impairment loss. Costs include professional fees and,
for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance
with the Group's accounting policy. Such assets are classified to
the appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets,
on the same basis as other assets, commences when the assets are
ready for their intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets other
than construction in progress less their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated
useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes
in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into
operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability. The
aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental
expense on a straight-line basis.
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Leasing (Continued)
Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the Group
assesses the classification of each element as a finance or an
operating lease separately based on the assessment as to whether
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of
each element have been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear
that both elements are operating leases in which case the entire
lease is classified as an operating lease. Specifically, the minimum
lease payments (including any lump-sum upfront payments) are
allocated between the land and the building elements in proportion
to the relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the land
element and building element of the lease at the inception of the
lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an
operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the
consolidated statement of financial position and is amortised over
the lease term on a straight-line basis. When the lease payments
cannot be allocated reliably between the land and building
elements, the entire lease is generally classified as a finance lease
and accounted for as property, plant and equipment.

Investment property

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or
for capital appreciation (including properties under construction
for such purposes). Investment properties include land held for
undetermined future use, which is regarded as held for capital
appreciation purpose.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any
directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are stated at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses. Construction costs incurred for investment
properties under construction are capitalised as part of the carrying
amount of the investment properties under construction.
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LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED EX{t THRA A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R M EE

N

(For the year ended 31 December 2014) (#Z=2014F12A3181EFE)

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Leasing (Continued)
Investment property (Continued)

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and
no future economic benefits are expected from its disposals. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in the profit or loss in the period in
which the property is derecognised.

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately
are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible assets
with finite useful lives is recognised on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with
the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a
prospective basis.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future
economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains and
losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are determined on a first-in, first-out
method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price
for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs
necessary to make the sale.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit schemes and the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF scheme"”), which
are defined contribution plans, are recognised as an expense
when employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.
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Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchanges
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary
items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they arise except for:

+  exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings relating
to assets under construction for future productive use, which
are included in the cost of those assets when they are
regarded as an adjustment to interest costs on those foreign
currency borrowings;

«  exchange differences on transactions entered into in order
to hedge certain foreign currency risks (see the accounting
policies below); and

«  exchange differences on monetary items receivable from or
payable to a foreign operation for which settlement is neither
planned nor likely to occur (therefore forming part of the net
investment in the foreign operation), which are recognised
initially in other comprehensive income and reclassified from
equity to profit or loss on repayment of the monetary items.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign operation
are translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e.
Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates prevailing at the end of
each reporting period. Income and expenses items are translated
at the average exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates
fluctuate significantly during the period, in which case, the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity under the heading of translation
reserve.
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LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED EX{t THRA A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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(For the year ended 31 December 2014)

3.

e R R M EE
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Foreign currencies (Continued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the Group's
entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss
of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, or a
partial disposal of an interest in a joint arrangement that includes a
foreign operation of which the retained interest becomes a financial
asset), all of the exchange differences accumulated in equity in
respect of that operation attributable to the owners of the Company
are reclassified to profit or loss.

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that
does not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiary, the
proportionate share of accumulated exchange differences are re-
attributed to non-controlling interests and are not recognised in
profit or loss. For all other partial disposals (i.e. partial disposals
of joint arrangements that do not result in the Group losing joint
control), the proportionate share of the accumulated exchange
differences is reclassified to profit or loss.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended
use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets until such time
as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching
to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic
basis over the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses
the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.
Specifically, government grants whose primary condition is that the
Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-current
assets are recognised as a deduction from the carrying amount of
the relevant asset in the consolidated statement of financial position
and transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational basis
over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future related
costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
become receivable.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit before tax as reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income because of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.
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LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED EX{t THRA A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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(For the year ended 31 December 2014) (#Z=2014F12A3181EFE)

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax base used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from goodwill or from the initial recognition of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor
the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and interest
in a joint arrangements, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interest are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or
part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled
or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the
current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity respectively.
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Share-based payment transactions
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

The fair value of services received determined by reference to the
fair value of share options granted at the grant date is expensed on
a straight-line basis over the vesting period, with a corresponding
increase in equity (share options reserve). Service and non-market
base performance conditions are not taken in account when
estimating the fair value at measurement date.

Instead, service and non-market base performance conditions are
taken in consideration to determine the number of share options
that are expected to ultimately vest.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its estimates
of the number of options that are expected to ultimately vest. The
impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised
in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the
revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to share options
reserve.

When the share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to
accumulated profits.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss ("FVTPL")) are added to or deducted from the fair value of
the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED EX{t THRA A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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(For the year ended 31 December 2014) (& ZE2014F12A3181EFE)

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into the following specified categories:
loans and receivables and financial assets at FVTPL. The classification
depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is
determined at the time of initial recognition.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including
all fees paid or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including
trade and other receivables, loan to a joint venture, amount due
from a joint venture and bank balances and cash) are measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any
identified impairment (see accounting policy on impairment loss on
financial assets below).

Financial assets at fair value through profit loss
Financial assets classified as at FVTPL when the financial asset is

either held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or
losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or loss.
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Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired when there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.

For loans and receivables, objective evidence of impairment could
include:

«  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

«  breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest
and principal payments; or

« it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy
or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade receivables,
assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually are, in
addition, assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective
evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include
the Group's past experience of collecting payments, an increase in
the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the credit
period ranged 7 to 60 days and observable changes in national or
local economic conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest
rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all loans and receivables with the
exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is
reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes in the
carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit
or loss. When a trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is
written off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited to profit or loss.
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LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED EX{t THRA A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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(For the year ended 31 December 2014) (& ZE2014F12A3181EFE)

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying
amount of the investment at the date the impairment is reversed
does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified
as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including
all fees paid or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis other

than those financial liabilities at FVTPL, of which the interest expense
is included in net gains or losses.
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Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial
liabilities are derivatives that are not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with any
gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or
loss.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade and other payables, amount
due to a related company and bank borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Derivative financial instruments and hedging

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date when
derivative contracts are entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end of the reporting period.
The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss immediately
unless the derivative is designated and effective as a hedging
instrument, in which case the timing of the recognition in profit or
loss depends on the nature of the hedge relationship.

Hedge accounting

The Group designates certain derivatives as hedging instruments for
cash flow hedges.

At the inception of the hedging relationship the Group documents
the relationship between the hedging instrument and hedged
item, along with its risk management objectives and its strategy
for undertaking various hedge transactions. Furthermore, at the
inception of the hedge and on an ongoing basis, the Group
documents whether the hedging instrument is highly effective in
offsetting changes in cash flows of the hedged item attributable to
the hedged risk.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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(For the year ended 31 December 2014)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Derivative financial instruments and hedging (Continued)
Cash flow hedge

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that
are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading
of hedging reserve. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective
portion is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity (hedging reserve) are reclassified to profit or
loss in the periods when the hedged item is recognised in profit or
loss, in the same line of the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income as the recognised hedged item.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the Group revokes the
hedging relationship, the hedging instrument expires or is sold,
terminated, or exercised, or when it no longer qualifies for hedge
accounting. Any gain or loss recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in hedging reserve at that time remains in
equity and is recognised when the forecast transaction is ultimately
recognised in profit or loss. When a forecast transaction is no
longer expected to occur, the gain or loss accumulated in equity is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the
asset's carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received
and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or expire. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.
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Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with finite useful lives
to determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine
the extent of the impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to
individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to
the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable
and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

59

Annual Report 2014 F 3§

BRERETEERE

AEENHERRBSEAERAEA
FHBERREREEREE - HE
ERBEAPRBIZEEERZEM
BEREE - WFEEAZETR - Kk
AAEEZAIREEE - AEERERRE
ZiRE(E) - BEAGET —HERNE
EZ AR RE - NREEEHETEE
PBREELEM A OKRSHE - N7
BESEEEBEERER K -
REENTORE@ERRSELSEM - =X
SIPEREEEENHENRELR
RENEM—BzR/NMERIBREELSE

fi °

AJUe [B] & FE S X TEDRL B AR HL4E AR
BEZESE - R HEREER - &
AFERBESREERREBRBEELZ
ERMSHERARARARASRER
At B EEERBRBRATRGR KRR EIR
B

At BE (KRS EEEMN) 2K E
EBEERERAE  MZEE(FREE
HEEB) 2 REAEAREEE A EEE
B - REEESARERNERA

R EBEELRER - AZEE(SRE
EAEM) ZREEREMEELERZ
fAET AR EEE - MBI Z BREET
SHRANZEE(HREELEMINE
EFEYEERTAIRERE T MEE
ZFREE - REEERD SR fERR
BEA -



LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED EX{t THRA A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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(For the year ended 31 December 2014)

4.

(BZE2014F12A31BILFE)

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required to
make various estimates based on past experience and expectations
of the future and other information. The key sources of estimation
uncertainty that can significantly affect the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities recognised in the consolidated financial statements
within the next financial year are disclosed below.

Impairment loss on trade receivables

The assessment of the impairment loss on trade receivables
of the Group is based on the evaluation of collectability and
aging analysis of accounts and on management’s judgment. A
considerable amount of judgement is required in assessing the
ultimate realisation of these receivables, including the current
creditworthiness of each customer. If the financial conditions of the
Group's customers were to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment
of their ability to make payments, additional allowances may be
required. Impairment is made based on the estimation of the
future cash flow discounted at the original effective rate to calculate
the present value. As at 31 December 2014, the carrying value
of trade receivables (net of impairment loss) was approximately
HK$33,220,000 (2013: HK$37,324,000).

Write-down of inventories

Management reviews the inventories listing at the end of each
reporting period, and makes allowance for obsolete and slow-
moving inventory items identified that are no longer suitable for use
in operation. Estimation of net realisable value are based on the
most reliable evidence available at the time the estimates are made,
of the amount the inventories are expected to realise. Where the
net realisable value is less than the cost, a material write down may
arise. As at 31 December 2014, the carrying amount of inventories
(net of allowances) was approximately HK$165,390,000 (2013:
HK$116,578,000).
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Income taxes

As at 31 December 2014, a deferred tax asset in relation to
unused tax losses of approximately HK$123,471,000 (2013:
HK$65,815,000) was not recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams. The realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly depends
on whether sufficient future profits or taxable temporary differences
will be available in the future. In cases where the expectation for
future profit streams changes, a recognition of deferred tax assets
may arise, which would be recognised in profit or loss for the period
in which such a recognition takes place.

Recognition of deferred tax

As at 31 December 2014, no deferred tax liabilities have been
recognised on the undistributed profits of the group companies in
the PRC as the Group plans to retain those profits in the respective
entities for their daily operations and future developments. In case
there is a change in such plan, additional tax liabilities will arise,
which will be recognised in the profit or loss for the period in which
the management intends to declare such profits in the foreseeable
future or the Group's future development plan is amended,
whichever is earlier. Details of the above unrecognised liabilities are
set out in note 8.

Fair value measurements and valuation processes

Some of the Group's assets and liabilities are measured at fair
value for financial reporting purposes. The board of directors of the
Company determines the appropriate valuation techniques and
inputs for fair value measurements.

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses
market-observable data to the extent it is available. Where Level
1 inputs are not available, the Group engages third party qualified
valuers to perform the valuation. The directors work closely with
the qualified external valuers to establish the appropriate valuation
techniques and inputs to the model and to understand the cause of
fluctuations in the fair value of the assets and liabilities.
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4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

Fair value measurements and valuation processes
(Continued)

The Group uses valuation techniques that include inputs that are
not based on observable market data to estimate the fair value of
certain types of financial instruments. Notes 16 and 37c provide
detailed information about the valuation techniques, inputs and key
assumptions used in the determination of the fair value of various
assets and liabilities.
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5. REVENUE B A
An analysis of the Group's revenue for the year is as follows: REBFAWARTAOT
2014 2013
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FHETT
Manufacture and sales of chemical products HlEREE{C T ESR 1,560,028 1,329,131
6. SEGMENT INFORMATION SEEFE
(a) Operating segments (a) E&EDE

HKFRS 8 requires operating segments to be identified on
the basis of internal reports about components of the Group
that are regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision
makers (“CODMs"), being the Chairman of the Company, in
order to allocate resources to segments and to assess their
performance. The CODMs review the Group's profit as a
whole, which is generated solely from the manufacture and
sale of chemical products and determined in accordance with
the Group's accounting policies, for performance assessment.
Therefore no separate segment information is prepared by the
Group.
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Geographical information (b) HEER
The Group's operations are located in the PRC. Its non-current REBELEXBUNTE o« HIER
assets are located in the PRC. BEEMPNAE o
The Group's revenue from external customers by geographical REBELEEBRBINEEP 2 W
location of the operations is detailed below: AN B HEFIBAT -
Revenue from
external customers
REMBEFHBA
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT THETT
PRC a3 1,560,028 1,327,225
India fE - 1,906
1,560,028 1,329,131
Revenue from major products () EEERKA
The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue from its REBHEBEMBASTAT :
major products:
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FHETT
Chloromethane products Rl abm 736,018 543,472
Caustic soda 1Tl 583,083 578,503
Hydrogen peroxide BRER 137,867 147,584
Others Hth 103,060 59,572
1,560,028 1,329,131
Information about major customers (d) =EZFEHR
No customer contributed over 10% of the total sale of the MEFESEtITERHEEST PN
Group in both years. HEKABBREBRIEEED

10% °
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LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED EX{t THRA A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2014) (& ZE2014F12A3181EFE)

7. OTHER INCOME 7. HftlrA
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FH&TT
Bank interest income RITHEMA 37,506 64,012
Government grants (note) BT HERL (Hrat) 21,77 372279
Scrap sales EE YA 13,253 9,137
Net exchange gain HEE N U Es - 50,625
Others Hith 13,715 16,396
86,245 177,449

note: The Group recognises these grants as other income upon receipt.

Brat - REBRUE % SRR R AR A -

INCOME TAX EXPENSE PRSI H
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHTT
The charge comprises: XHBE
Current tax: REAFIIA
PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT") R E TSR 83,035 92,383
Other jurisdiction Hih Al A= 43 47
Overprovision in prior years: LARTEEE % 5T1R
EIT BB EFTEH (2,255) -
Deferred tax: IRIERIA ¢
Current year RNEZIELER 536 (26,205)
81,359 66,225

The Group’s major business is in the PRC. Under the Law of the
PRC on EIT and its Implementation Regulation, the tax rate of the
PRC subsidiaries is 25%.

For the years 2013 and 2014, Jiangsu Lee & Man Chemical
Company Limited was entitled to a reduced EIT rate of 15% as it

has been qualified as a High and New Technology Enterprise.

Taxation arising in other jurisdiction is calculated at the rate
prevailing in the relevant jurisdiction.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is made for both years since
there is no assessable profit for both years.
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The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit before
tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as follows:

Profit before tax BR T A& A

Tax at the domestic income tax rate of 25%
(2013: 25%)

Tax effect of share of loss (profit) of
joint ventures

Tax effect of expenses not deductible in
determining taxable profit

(2013 : 25%)
S

M8

R PSR 25% 2 IR

Annual Report 2014 F 3§

FABARXEGEBR LA MBEEK
SRADIGHATAEERDT

EiEA 2 hEEBERCERN)Z

BRG]

Tax effect of income not taxable in determining & i & 2R 54 i 1) B HH 7B FE RR B UL

taxable profit 2B E
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised
Effect of concessionary rate granted to a PRC
subsidiary
Effect of different tax rate of a subsidiary
operating in other jurisdiction
Overprovision in respect of prior year

PNIEDEE S g

AR AR IR Z B
R B AR REERE R E

HitrEEROREER 2 FE

Utilisation of deductible temporary difference {8 F 2 AT HEREY AT RN BT B 1 22 22

previously recognised

FRMBHRH

Income tax expense for the year

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unutilised tax
losses of one PRC subsidiary (2013: two PRC subsidiaries) of
HK$123,471,000 (2013: HK$65,815,000) available to offset
against future profits. These tax losses will expire at various dates
up to and including 2019 (2013: 2018). No deferred tax asset has
been recognised on the tax losses due to the unpredictability of
future profit streams.

Under the EIT Law of the PRC, withholding tax is imposed on
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by the PRC
subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation has
not been provided for in the consolidated financial statements in
respect of temporary differences attributable to accumulated profits
of the PRC subsidiaries amounting to HK$2,158,100,000 (2013:
HK$1,819,976,000) as the Group is able to control the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAIT

411,470 374,957

102,868 93,739

687 (115)

17,470 11,853

(4,910) (11,779)

7 16,530 14,359
(54,409) (41,010)

4,842 (822)

(2,255) -

536 -

81,359 66,225

R|ERR - AEEEF—MHE (2013 :
ME)PBERB AR 2 RANHEER
123,471,000 7T (2013 : 65,815,000
B TT) A SE AR 2OE FI o B IE B K
A20199 (2013 : 20184 ) Z AIAI A
BFEm - BRRIREHZRATATE
B - BUSBRGIBRERERBEET

BIEEAPEMEHE - RS
H2008F 1 A1 HRZEAKNB AR Z
AT =R B AR BB o FEARE BT SR
FAXRFEANE AR Z k&
Z &t & #2,158,100,000 7% 7T (2013 :
1,819,976,00078 7T ) TEIRIEEFR 157
AREE G IEHEREEEZNED
B AR AT BEAE O] T8 R G R N & BB 7%
ERFMEER o



LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED I2I{t THERAE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
mE SRR MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2014) (#Z=2014F12A318ILFE)

8. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED) 8. FfBMIHE)
The following are the major deferred tax assets recognised and LWTAETEREEREERNFARETH
movement thereon during the current and prior reporting period: R R EE)

Deferred

income

in respect of

subsidy

received for

acquisition of

prepaid lease

payments

B R E

FIASTH

i Y R B

ZARFEYA

HK$'000

FHET

At 1 January 2013 M20135F1H1H -
Credited to profit or loss BB (26,205)
Exchange realignment bE H SRR (167)
At 31 December 2013 M20135F12A31H (26,372)
Charged to profit or loss FRAER 536
Exchange realignment b SR 487
At 31 December 2014 R2014F12A31H (25,349)
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2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Profit for the year has been arrived at after FRBEMEHE
charging:
Directors’ emoluments (note 12) EEREHMAEI2) 9,763 15,434
Other staff costs: E A% B B
Salaries and other benefits e REAMRF
(excluding directors) (BERIN 102,941 82,168
Retirement benefit schemes contributions RIREHET B
(excluding directors) (B=ERIN) 9,955 6,079
Total staff costs 8 TRAARER 122,659 103,681
Finance costs: BERA
Interest on bank borrowings wholly FEXH —ERAFALES
repayable within five years ER Z RITER 50,302 42,946
Less: amounts capitalised to property, B NI BB RERE
plant and equipment (note) Btz 28 (H77) (17,312) =
32,990 42,946
Net adjustment on interest rate swaps EERERREREHZ
designated as cash flow hedges of MEEHaNZ AR FE
floating rate debt 4,346 5413
37,336 48,359
Release of prepaid lease payments TENMHEERIE B 1,703 1,790
Amortisation of intangible assets BV EE#RH 1,236 1,227
Auditors’ remuneration FZ ENEM N 5 1,381 1,305
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses R/ HNFEKA 906,101 855,224
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  #1% - BE LR EZITE 156,246 119,381
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEME - BREREEEE
equipment 1,834 169
Net exchange loss bE KRR 30,153 =
note: Borrowing costs capitalised during the year arose from the general borrowings Hist - FREBERAE AR TR —RERTEEL
and were calculated by applying a capitalisation rate of 2.3% (2013: Nil) per REBRAENEF23%(2013 : E)HER
annum to expenditures on qualifying assets. {bLEEE -



LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED EX{t THRA A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
y= A

e M IE AR MY EE

(For the year ended 31 December 2014)

(BZE2014F12A31BILFE)

10. EARNINGS PER SHARE

11.

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share is
based on the profit for the year of HK$330,111,000 (2013:
HK$308,732,000) and 825,000,000 (2013: 825,000,000) shares
in issue during the year.

The computation of diluted earnings per share for both years did
not assume the exercise of the Company's options because the
exercise price of those options was higher than the average market
price for shares in both years.

10. HSREF

EREAREBERNTIZE N & F
330,111,000/7T(2013 : 308,732,000/7T,)
.825,000,000(2013 : 825,000,000) %
{EsHE -

HRMEFERREZTEESRFERE
AFHHE - Bt - RMEFERSRER
BHERBNFEBRRTETTERRRBHE -

DIVIDENDS 11. B2
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Dividends recognised as distributions FADHERDIEZRE
during the year:
Final dividend of HK7 cents per share BZE2013F12A31HIEFE
for the year ended 31 December 2013 RER B &7 57,750 =
Interim dividend of HK7 cents per share HE2014F 128310 LFE
for the year ended 31 December 2014 R BB A7 57,750 -
Final dividend of HK8 cents per share HZE20126F12A31HIEEE
for the year ended 31 December 2012 REARR BFALSEAL - 66,000
Interim dividend of HK7 cents per share HZE2013F12A31HIEEE
for the year ended 31 December 2013 RSB AR T - 57,750
115,500 123,750

A final dividend of HK8 cents (2013: HK7 cents) per share
amounting to HK$66,000,000 (2013: HK$57,750,000) in respect
of the year ended 31 December 2014 has been proposed by the
Board and is subject to approval by the shareholders in annual
general meeting.
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12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S 12. EEREEHITEENS
EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the 7 (2013: 7) EARENTF76(2013 : 7R EERE
directors and chief executive officer were as follows: FHRITEZMELT :
Other emoluments
Rfte
Contributions
Salaries  to retirement  Discretionary
and other benefit bonus
benefits schemes payments
Fees HER EARER HibRH Total
e HftEH HE [ el % CH)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thn TERL Thn TEn ThR
Year ended 31.12.2014 BEZ014512831BLLEFE
Executive directors HiTEE
Wai Siu Kee IR 960 1,200 - 3,300 5,460
Lee Man Yan (appointed as Chief ~ ZXB(R201458F 15
Executive Officer on 1 August 2014)  ZEAERHTE) 960 1223 - - 2,183
Yang Zuo Ning BiEE - 963 - - 963
Wong Yuet Ming TAH - 780 17 - 197

Independent non-executive diectors BB TEE

Wan Chi Keung, Aaron JP IRR 120 - - - 120
Wong Kai Tung, Tony ok 120 - - - 120
Heng Victor Ja Wei v 120 - - - 120

2,280 4,166 17 3,500 9,763
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e ISR MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2014) (#Z=2014F12A318ILFE)

12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S

EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

12. EERERATEMS(Z)

Other emoluments
Eftite
Share-based
Contributions  performance
Salaries  to retirement related  Discretionary
and other benefit incentive bonus
benefits schemes AR A payments
Fees Hek REN AR ZIEE EfbRH Total
we EftEH IR FRRE BERe ait
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL FAL TAT TAT TAT TAT
Year ended 31.12.2013 BEW013F12A31 B LLFE
Executive directors HITEE
Wai Siu Kee IR 960 1,200 - - 3,000 5160
Lee Man Yan EVE 960 1214 = 6,000 - 8,174
Yang Zuo Ning BIEE - 945 - - - 945
Wong Yuet Ming TA#H - 780 15 - - 795
Independent non-executive diectors BV S/ 7EE
Wan Chi Keung, Aaron JP i 120 - - - - 120
Wong Kai Tung, Tony THE 120 - - - - 120
Heng Victor Ja Wei iz 120 - - - - 120
2,280 4139 15 6,000 3,000 15,434

note: The share-based performance related incentive was determined in recognition

of the director’s outstanding performance in development and management

of the chemical products business which has contributed a significant growth

in the Group's profit and as an incentive for his continuing commitment and

contribution to the Group in future. Other performance related incentive

payments were determined with regards to individual performance. Neither the

chief executive officer nor any of the directors waived any emoluments in both

years.
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13. EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS 13. EE#M&
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group, EASBESNERFMN ALY - B1E3
three (2013: three) were directors of the Company whose 7(2013 : 36) A RAIES - HFME
emoluments are disclosed in note 12 above. The emoluments of B B EE12 - MESR207(2013 1 2
the remaining two (2013: two) individuals were as follows: i)z BieanT -

2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Salaries and other benefits e R EMmEF 1,907 1,895
Contributions to retirement benefits schemes — RKIEFEH 2% 17 15
1,924 1,910

The emoluments were within the following band: e FToRE
2014 2013
Number of Number of
employees employees
EE&E BEEHE
Not exceeding HK$1,000,000 381,000,000/ 7T 1 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7T % 1,500,000/ 7T 1 1
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(For the year ended 31 December 2014) (EZE2014F12A31HIEFE)

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14. 3% - BE Rk IE

Furniture
fixtures and
equipment Motor  Plantand Construction
Buildings  #fi - %8 vehicles  machinery in progress Total
i £ R&f RE  HEREE W ERIR ait
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
FAT AT AT FAT AT FAT
CosT %
At 1 January 2013 R2013F1A18 56,564 4,896 10407 1357518 300408 1,729,793
Exchange realignment 3 2,798 171 311 37,657 14,167 55,104
Additions RE 1 2,456 1,632 22849 953,959 980,907
Disposals HE - (154) (1317) (359) - (1,830)
Transfer ELEY 204,872 4,180 1,364 451100 (661516) -
At 31 December 2013 R®2013%12A318 264,245 11,549 12397 1,868,765 607,018 2763974
Exchange realignment R (6416) (149) 241 (41,263) (15,150) (62,737)
Additions AE - 5384 2,360 35811 845,598 889,153
Disposals & - (353) (1,121) (5,157) - (6,631)
Transfer v 74,820 289 - 323,352 (398,461) -
At 31 December 2014 R®2014%12A318 332,649 16,720 13877 2181508 1039005 3583759
DEPRECIATION ik
At 1 January 2013 R2013F1A18 10355 1,930 2,628 368,387 - 383,300
Provided for the year RER 3,370 869 1,931 113211 - 119,381
Exchange realignment A AE 297 57 86 10,784 - 11,224
Elimination on disposal HERHE - (138) (1,185) (178) = (1,501)
At 31 December 2013 #2013%F12A318 14,022 2718 3,460 492,204 - 512,404
Provided for the year RERRE 12,054 2,045 2,343 139,604 - 156,246
Exchange realignment B 5 (429) (78) 491 (11,101 - (11,117)
Elimination on disposal HEREE - (100) (583) (2,636) = (3,319)
At 31 December 2014 R2014%12A318 25,647 4,785 5711 618,071 - 654214
CARRYING VALUE REE
At 31 December 2014 R2014%12A31R 307,002 11935 8166 1563437 1039005 2929545
At 31 December 2013 R2013%12A31R 250,223 8,831 8937 1376561 607,018 2251570
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14.

15.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated
on a straight-line basis at the following rates per annum:

Buildings and leasehold improvements 5%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 20%
Motor vehicles 25%
Plant and machinery 5% — 20%

The carrying values of the Group's property interests comprises
buildings on land under medium-term land use rights in the PRC.

PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

The Group's prepaid lease payments comprise leasehold land in the
PRC under medium-term lease.

14.

15.
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W% BERBEE)

bt - BERREEB IARRE
BT ERITE -

BFRHEENR 5%
BRI~ B RERE 20%
e 25%
BB N kes 50%—20%

AEBYEESNEAEREETEER
FETH M E AL EREREEY)

AHAERT

AEEZBENBEEFREHEPEEANZ
REAE i o

2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T

Analysed for reporting purposes as: DIT2IANT -
Non-current asset EMBNEE 78,890 82,109
Current asset MENEE 1,877 1,913
80,767 84,022

Note: As at 31 December 2014, government grants in respect of acquisition of
prepaid lease payments with an aggregate amount of HK$101,396,000 (2013:
HK$104,128,000) was deducted from the carrying amount of prepaid lease
payments.
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LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED EX{t THRA A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2014) (& ZE2014F12A3181EFE)

INVESTMENT PROPERTY 16. IREME

HK$'000

FA&TT

COST 2%
At 1 January 2013 720131 H18 -
Additions NE 48,470
At 31 December 2013 R2013F12A31H 48,470
Additions NE 1,391
Exchange realignment HE 5, B (908)
At 31 December 2014 R2014F12A31H 48,953

The investment property represented a piece of land acquired in
late November 2013 held for a currently undetermined future use.

Details of the Group's investment property and information about
the fair value hierarchy as at 31 December 2014 are as follows:

REMERR2013F 11 ARWEZ —1&
T BFEERERRTE Z A RAR °

AEFEKREWMEN2014F12A831HZ
HERERAATFESHZERNT

Fair value
as at
31 December
Level 2 2014
20145
12A31H
2/ ZAFE
HK$'000 HK$000
THETT FET
Property with undetermined use located IR B 2 RARTE RS
in the PRC 53,136 53,136

The fair value of the Group's investment properties at 31 December
2014 was HK$53,136,000 (2013: HK$48,470,000). The fair
value was determined by directors based on the market approach.
The market approach uses prices and other relevant information
generated by market transactions involving comparable properties.
In estimating the fair value of the property, the highest and best
use of the properties is their current use. One of the key inputs
used in valuing the investment property was the sales prices of
properties nearby the Group's investment property which ranged
from RMB2,250/M2 to RMB2,725/M2. The estimated price of
the Group's investment property is taken as RMB2,560/Mz. An
increase in the sales prices would result in an increase in fair value
measurement of the investment property and vice versa.
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THE GROUP

COST
At 1 January 2013
Currency realignment

At 31 December 2013
Currency realignment

At 31 December 2014

AMORTISATION
At 1 January 2013
Provided for the year
Currency realignment

At 31 December 2013
Provided for the year
Currency realignment

At 31 December 2014

CARRYING VALUE
At 31 December 2014

At 31 December 2013

ARH

R
MR2013F1 818
ERRIERES

MR2013F12H31H
P H

MR2014F12H31H
ey
MR2013F181H

N2
PEE 5 S B

MR2013F12H31H
R E S
ER IR

MR2014F12H31H

BREE
MR2014F12H31H

MR2013F12H31H

The technical knowhow was acquired from third parties. It is
amortised on a straight-line basis over its estimated useful life of ten

years.
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Technical
knowhow
A &N
HK$'000
FAT

12,112
309

12,421
(233)

12,188

4,775
1,227
137

6,139
1,236
(132)

7,243

4,945

6,282

BRRMABDBEF =7 - AR +F
ZEFHERERRA - REREEH



LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED EX{t THRA A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRI EE

(For the year ended 31 December 2014)

18. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

(BZE2014F12A31BILFE)

2014 2013

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET FHIT

Cost of unlisted investments in joint ventures ~ 3F F& &M 7 E KA 24,177 24,177

Exchange realignment B 5, B 2,553 2,999
Share of (loss) profit and other comprehensive  F&{ (J&518) % 1| & EAb 2 M

(expense) income () Wz (2,587) 162

24,143 27,338

Details of each of the Group's joint ventures at the end of the

reporting period are as follows:

AEENESRAEEENFHBERIINT -

Class of  Proportion of issued
Place of shares/ and fully paid up
Form of establishment/ capital capital indirectly  Principal
Name of entity entity ventures incorporation held held by the Group  activity
P
RE/ s ]
BELE =N BESENERITR
BREEE BRZER FR ALt B EFic) HREXRLA TEER
2014 2013
FARBEEAMRAR Limited incorporated  PRC Registered 40% 40%  Provision of port
BRABIKL H Capital facilities
AR RSO RNE
Southern Hill Company  Limited incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary 50% 50% Investment holding
Limited BRATKL BE gl REER
MIEFRAT
Its wholly owned subsidiary:
E2 BB LA
Ruichang Lee & Man  Limited incorporated PRC Registered 50% 50%  Provision of port
Logistics Company AR AR i Capital facilities
Limited AMER REBORN
In & B X
BRARR
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18. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)

Summarised financial information in respect of each of the Group's
material joint ventures is set out below. The summarised financial
information below represents amounts shown in the joint venture's
financial statements prepared in accordance with HKFRSs.

The joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method in
these consolidated financial statements.

Annual Report 2014 F 3§

I

op
y

EdRHm(E)

FRASESEEAREALELE LR
BER - BT - L THMBEERRE
RECEMBHRRZSERRBBYT

R -

ERRBEXERAT ERRBEXERAT
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAET
Current assets mENEE 15,840 22916
Non-current assets ERBEE 87,922 73,684
Current liabilities mENAE (47,902) (32,906)

The above amounts of assets and liabilities include the following:

NEBERABESREEBIEAT ¢

2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHTT
Cash and cash equivalents RekERREER 15,495 22,532
Current financial liabilities MENTEEE
(excluding trade and other payables (TBEIERNE S REMKIE
and provisions) R HAE) (31,250) (31,847)
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHIT
Revenue ON 75 -
Loss and total comprehensive expense FABEREEX HERE
for the year (6,746) -
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LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED EX{t THRA A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IS R M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2014) (EZE2014F12A31HIEFE)

18. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)

ERRBEEFRAR (Continued) ERREBBEEARAT(E)
The above loss for the year includes the following: FRERNEBEESESENT
2014 2013
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHAET
Depreciation e (3,435) =
Interest income FEMA 53 -

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to N EBBENBERERERENTEAR
the carrying amount of the interest in FHARBE X B R AR BEEBRARZREEBRNEGS Y
recognised in the consolidated financial statements: TR
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T
Net assets of HAREEXFRAA FARBEXRBRARIIFEE 55,860 63,694
Proportion of the Group's ownership TEERBERERARAEE
interest in BARABEEBR A A BIRARIEAREZ B 40% 40%
Carrying amount of the Group's AEERENERRBEE
interest in BEARBEXFR AT BRARZREE 22,344 25,478
Southern Hill Company Limited HEEERAR
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET T
Current assets BB E 1,848 1,583
Non-current assets IEmENEE 196,163 183,634
Current liabilities mEEE (194,413) (181,497)
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18. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED) 18.

Southern Hill Company Limited (Continued)

The above amounts of assets and liabilities include the following:
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I

\
/

RERRZHG (&

T

REERAR (&)

NEBRENBBESEBEAT :

2014 2013
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT
Cash and cash equivalents HehERIREIEE 1,848 1,583
Current financial liabilities RBVBEE
(excluding trade and other payables (TBREEMNE S REMFKIE
and provisions) NBR) 183,355 167,780
2014 2013
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Revenue WA - =
(Loss) profit and total comprehensive FR(ER) &M ER2H
(expense) income for the year (ZH) e EE (101) 919

The above (loss) profit for the year include the following:

FiiFER(EE) aNSBRBEMT

2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET T
Depreciation and amortisation PrEe K is (37) (40)
Interest income FLEHA 2 3
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LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED I2I{t THERAE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
mE SRR MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2014) (#Z=2014F12A318ILFE)

18. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED) 18. SELREZEE(E)
Southern Hill Company Limited (Continued) FIEFRDE (&)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the NEEBYBENERERENEIES
carrying amount of the interest in Southern Hill Company Limited FRAE 2 BRE AR GRS W

recognised in the consolidated financial statements:

2014 2013

HK$000 HK$'000

FET FHT

Net assets of Southern Hill Company Limited ~ FIEAR AR 2 REE 3,598 3,720
Proportion of the Group's ownership interest in - A& E 5B & GR A R #

Southern Hill Company Limited 2 #B15 50% 50%

Carrying amount of the Group's interest in REBRENEERRARZ

Southern Hill Company Limited REE 1,799 1,860
19. INVENTORIES 19. #K

2014 2013

HK$'000 HK$'000

FEx FHIT

Raw materials and consumables RAME R FEF 88,455 91,808

Work in progress Tl 24,715 8,790

Finished goods 1B aa 52,220 15,980

165,390 116,578
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20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 20. YR SR EMERIE
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FH&TT
Trade receivables FEWE B BR 5K 33,220 37,324
Bills receivables e E2iE 113,594 68,399
146,814 105,723
Prepayments FafRR 107,650 46,569
Deposits to suppliers HtEERT & 40,151 13,690
Value-added tax receivables FEUIEB(ETE IR 178,566 103,454
Other receivables H b ek 1,812 1,034
Total trade and other receivables FEWE 5 R EAMRIEA T 474,993 270,470

The aged analysis of trade and bills receivables based on the invoice

BUEZEAREBERNREPRRIRER

date at the end of the reporting period is as follows: BZRREDITAT :
2014 2013
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Not exceeding 30 days T EB30KR 120,217 98,161
31-60 days 31ZE60K 20,373 5,202
61-90 days 61E90K 4,427 1,723
91-120 days 91E120K 1,797 637
146,814 105,723

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses the
potential customer’s credit quality by investigating its historical
credit record and then defines its credit limit. Trade receivables that
are neither past due nor impaired are considered to be recovered
based on historical experience.
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LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED EX{t THRA A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
y= A

e M IE AR MY EE

(For the year ended 31 December 2014)

(BZE2014F12A31BILFE)

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

21.

The Group generally allows its trade customers a credit period
ranged from 7 to 60 days. During the years ended 31 December
2014 and 2013, no allowance for doubtful debts was provided. The
Group generally makes provision against debts which are considered
as not recoverable. At 31 December 2014, trade receivables of Nil
(2013: approximately HK$2,360,000) was past due. The Group
does not hold any collateral over the overdue balance.

Ageing of trade receivables which are past due but not impaired:

20. BERHREMRE(E)

RNEBGRTEHIRFP ZEEHR BN
T7Z60H ° R2014F %2013 12 A
JNEIEFER - WEELREREE - &
SE-RER AT E 2 FIEFHRRE
5 - M2014F 124318 » WEEKE
SBEFRE RN E (20134 : 492,360,000/
T0) e AEBWERZEBBERISTEL
CIEREnI

BB EIT AR E B FE W B 5 SRIE BR e 40
T

2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000

TR TAT

61-90 days 61%90H - 2,360

As at 31 December 2014, all trade and bills receivables aged over
60 days are bills receivables and they are not past due.

LOAN TO A JOINT VENTURE/AMOUNT DUE FROM A
JOINT VENTURE

The loan to a joint venture represented shareholder's loan to
Southern Hill Company Limited. As at 31 December 2014, the
amount was unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.
The directors expect the amount to be repaid within one year after
the reporting period. The loan is denominated in US dollars which is
a currency other than the functional currency of the relevant group
entity.

As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, the amount due from a
joint venture represented the loan to FHAREE X B R AF] for
construction of a pier. As at 31 December 2013, the amount is
unsecured, interest-free and repayable in October 2014. During
2014, the loan agreement was renewed and as at 31 December
2014, the loan is unsecured, interest-free and repayable in October
2015.
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L]

AETEZEFERREATHEEERA
RIZER - A2014%128318 * B#
REAEEER N ERARERE
2 BEREHARREIRRESRE
—FREE - AEBUBEBEEEEED
REEHE AN B TTEHE -

R2014FE K2013F12A31H » &0
EZREBFEERFETEARBEE
ARARERIEEZTEEZA - K2013
F12A31H ' BEREAERE - T
SHERBR2014F 10 AEE - 20145
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Derivative financial assets
— net settlement

Derivative under
hedge accounting
Interest rate swap (Note i)

Derivatives not under
hedge accounting

Foreign currency forward
contracts (Note i)

Structured foreign currency
forward contract (Note iii)

Derivative financial liabilities
— net settlement

Derivatives under
hedge accounting
Interest rate swaps (Note ii)

Derivatives not under
hedge accounting
Foreign currency forward

contract (Note i)

The fair values of the derivative financial instruments are calculated
using discounted cash flow analysis based on the applicable yield

PTESRMEE
—FEELE
BHHETEARZ
fTEIT R
S HA (o 22ii)

WIRE HETHEAR
ZITETA
SNEEERER A H (Hazi)

ERMEINERIIE YD
oz

TEEmAE
—FREEE

BYHHETEARZ
fTEIT R

K B2 B8R (K7 aEi)

I RE T E A AR
ZOTETIR

INEE SR BR A 4 (KT 3ED)

curves of interest rates and forward rates.
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Current
T
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET THT
1,269 -
- 2,024
1,269 2,024
(460) (502)
(4,161) -
(4,621) (502)
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Non-current

IERED
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
31 360
31 360
(388) (2,811)
(388) (2,811)
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LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED EX{t THRA A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R M EE

(For the year ended 31 December 2014)

22. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

The derivative financial instruments are denominated in US and HK TESMITAERUNEREEER Y
dollars which are not the functional currency of the relevant group BB E T RABTTAE o

entity.

Notes: Bist

(i)  Foreign currency forward contracts - not under hedge accounting (i) INEEBESH-FEHETET

As at 31 December 2014, the amount represented the fair value of foreign
currency forward contracts held by the Group with terms stated as follows:

(BZE2014F12A31BILFE)

. TIESMTIRA(E)

R2014F12A831H

C ZEREARERAZ
INEEIIE 2 RTERGHRBIN AT

Notional amount Maturity Exchange rate
WetE F8A =X

Buy EUR8,400,000 30.3.2015 EUR1:USD1.2805

& AR8,400,000 1BX7T : 1.2805%7C
Buy RMB112,680,000 31.3.2015 USD1:RMB6.3175

B AAR®112,680,000 17T« AR¥63175
Sell RMB112,680,000 31.3.2015 USD1:RMB6.2600

JhH AR #112,680,000

(ii)  Interest rate swaps - under hedging accounting

The Group uses interest rate swaps to minimise its exposure to cash flow
interest rate risk of certain of its variable-rate US dollars and HK dollars bank
borrowings (see note 26) by swapping a proportion of the variable-rate bank
borrowings from variable interest rates to fixed interest rates. The interest rate
swaps and the corresponding bank borrowings have substantially the same
terms and the directors of the Company consider that the interest rate swaps
are highly effective hedging instruments. Major terms of the interest rate swaps

outstanding at 31 December 2014 are set out below:

Notional amount
WeeE

1%t : AR¥6.2600

(i)  FUREH - REPETET

mENERR(RME26) °
ZRITEE R D EBRERGRK - AR
T

Interest rate swap

A== 1

REBMEMFEE - BB DT RRT
fERHEEF IR REERN K - UL EE
HIEZ B ETRBITRITERAEELZRE
%lf}ﬁﬁ,ﬁ&ﬁﬁg

ERAFREHTIIES ﬁxﬁlZéﬂﬂIﬁ ° E’\
2014512 A31 B A= B8y = Z 57 E5I 0

1 contract with HK$300,000,000
119300,000,0007 T4 49

1 contract with US$38,000,000
11938,000,000% LA )

1 contract with US$15,000,000
11415,000,000E T & )

1 contract with HK$200,000,000
11%200,000,0007& 7c4 %)

Major terms of the interest rate swaps outstanding at 31 December 2013 are as

below:

Notional amount

e

From HIBOR + 2.7% to fixed rate of 3.4%

R EBRITRERE+2.7%EHETE £3.4%
From LIBOR + 2% to fixed rate of 2.93%

A R BRI T R 37 B +20008 A F £.2.93%
From LIBOR + 1.75% to fixed rate of 2.83%
FRBUERTTRIZENT B +1.75%% HiEF 5.2.83%
From HIBOR to fixed rate of 0.8%
BEBRITRFFEEEL0.8%

T

Interest rate swap

GRS

M2013F 12 A31 BRI RN EZIER

n

1 contract with HK$300,000,000
119300,000,000/8 7T & #)

1 contract with US$38,000,000
11938,000,000E L& 4

1 contract with US$22,000,000
11922,000,000E T4 4

1 contract with US$15,000,000
1115,000,000E T4 4

1 contract with HK$200,000,000
119200,000,000/8 7T & #)

From HIBOR + 2.7% to fixed rate of 3.4%
AEBRITRERB+2.7%EHETE E£3.4%
From LIBOR + 2% to fixed rate of 2.93%

R R BRI T R 37 B+20088 A F £.2.93%
From LIBOR to fixed rate of 1.68%
AmBERITREREEER1.68%

From LIBOR + 1.75% to fixed rate of 2.83%
FRRBUERTTRIZEIRE+1.75%E = F 5.2.83%
From HIBOR to fixed rate of 0.8%
REBRITRZERSZEES0.8%
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22. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Notes: (Continued)

(ii)

(iif)

Interest rate swaps - under hedging accounting (Continued)

The above contracts will mature within one to three (2013: one to four)
years from the end of the reporting period which match with the tenor of the
corresponding bank borrowings.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, net adjustment of HK$2,136,000
(2013: HK$4,514,000) was credited in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity and is expected to be released to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income at various dates
in line with the interest schedule of the corresponding bank borrowings in the
coming one to three (2013: one to four) years. A loss from fair value changes
of HK$4,346,000 (2013: HK$5,413,000) relating to interest incurred was
recognised in profit or loss (note 9).

Structured foreign currency forward contract - not under hedge
accounting

As at 31 December 2014, all structured foreign currency forward contracts were
settled.

At 31 December 2013, the notional amount of a structured foreign currency
forward contract amounted to US$5,000,000 with 24 valuation dates from 3
January 2013 to 3 December 2014 with settlement dates from 7 January 2013
to 5 December 2014. The expiry date of the contract was 3 December 2014.

On each of the 24 valuation dates, if the US$/RMB spot rate with reference to
Reuters page CNHFIXO1 as determined by a pre-agreed calculation agent (the
“Spot Rate”) pursuant to the structured foreign currency forward contract, is
higher than a strike rate at US$1:RMB6.5 (the “Strike Rate”), the Group will be
obligated to sell the notional amount of US$5,000,000 at the Strike Rate and
thus the Group may suffer a loss. If the Spot Rate is less than the Strike Rate, the
Group will receive a pre-determined rebate amount of RMB144,000. There was
a fair value gain of Nil (2013: HK$2,024,000) during the year.
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22. fTEEMTAE)

B - (&)

(ii)

(iif)

FREH - REHEHET (E)

A HERREER1EI(20134F : 154)
FATE - AREHEBRITERAS -

2014512 A31HER - FHEFE2,136,.000
HIL (20134 : 45140008 70) EREME
AREANER RS RETEE - S
RERE—E=F(2013F : —ENF)EAH
EERTEEZMELZAFEPRTR B 8 AR
GEEREMEARER - BRELFEA
W2 N EZEBEE 2 E184,346,000%8 7T
(20134 : 5,413,000/ 70 ) B M85 & HHER
(Hi5E9) ©

FRMIMNEEREN - EHHETET

R2014F12A318 - FRER/ABHINEREE
HECHEE -

M2013F12A318 * H2013F1 A3
2014612 A3 IE24@BEBET - &M
BIREG 4 2 B2 £ 58 45,000,000 7T * 4
B HHEIA201341A7HE20146F12A5H -
AHHER2014F 1238 fEm °

RE24E®BER BREBELEBEIINEERHE
4 WETHAREBHBEREZAFERE
2R FE 1T B E(Reuters page) CNHFIXO 17
ER([REEX])  BRTEER([1TEE
K |VETHARK : 65 AEBEEANAT
R & 1812 € 585,000,000 7T + B A
SEFETZIEX - MREERERITEE
K AEEBRRELECERSBEARK
144,0007T ° AAFE « WEES R FEREF]
(20134 : 3% 7F/2,024,0007%7T) °



LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED EX{t THRA A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
y= A

e M IE AR MY EE

(For the year ended 31 December 2014)

23.

24.

(BZE2014F12A31BILFE)

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group and short
term bank deposits with an original maturity of three months or less.
The deposits carry prevailing market interest rates which range from
0.28% to 5.15% (2013: 0.35% to 6.80%) per annum.

The following amounts of bank and cash are denominated in the
foreign currencies other than the functional currency of the relevant
group entities.

23.

BITERREAS

BITEB IR BRAEEFE 2R
ERREABIEAKPRIEAEEZ
REIRIT TR - ZEGFRIEMSFBEX
0.28%%5.15%(2013 : 0.35%Z%6.80%)
FHE o

ZNRE BB AN BB RCRR

2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
FiExT FHBT
HK dollars BT 1,099 1,576
US dollars ETT 7,402 9,880
8,501 11,456

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 24. EEAREMBRIE

Trade and other payables principally comprise amounts outstanding
for trade purchases and ongoing costs. The credit period obtained
for trade purchases is 7 to 45 days.

Included in trade and other payables is trade payable of
HK$78,463,000 (2013: HK$73,862,000). The aged analysis of
trade payable based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting
period is as follows:

ENESREMRBTERREESEE
PEFEBERASKAZANRIE - EFEE
ZRERHI A7 E45K o

ERNESREMFIBEEENE SRR
#$78,463,000/% 7L (2013 : 73,862,000
B BB SRR SRE B RIRERE
HZBRERDITIAT ¢

2014 2013

HK$'000 HK$'000

FEx FHET

Not exceeding 30 days TiEE30KR 50,439 51,522
31-60 days 31E260K 7,598 9,050
61-90 days 61290k 9,031 2,219
Over 90 days 90K 11,395 11,071
78,463 73,862

Receipt in advance L 44,553 19,887
Construction payable and accruals Bt TRRKTERE R 250,935 169,296
Value-added tax accruals FERT IR ERTE 26,159 27,595
Other payables H A FET R 25,154 26,951
Other accruals HEMERER 14,719 10,208
Total trade and other payables R85 REMFIASG G 439,983 327,799
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24. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (CONTINUED)

25.

The following amounts of trade and other payables are
denominated in currencies other than the functional currency of the
relevant group entities.

Annual Report 2014 F 3§

24. BARHREMBREA(E)

VAT FE A8 5 8RS EL b 50 IR 9 LA AR
SEERNINGEER I TR LR -

2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

HK dollars BT 484 104

AMOUNT DUE TO A RELATED COMPANY

25. EMRELTIRER

2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FHET
Lee & Man Paper Manufacturing Limited BIGERBER AR
(“Lee & Man Paper”) (MEExEH D) 4,047 2,938

Lee & Man Paper is beneficially owned and controlled by Mr. Lee
Wan Keung, the controlling shareholder of the Company’s ultimate
holding company, Fortune Star.

The amount represents a trade balance which is unsecured, non-
interest bearing, repayable on demand and aged within 90 days.
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LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED EX{t THRA A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R M EE

(For the year ended 31 December 2014) (& ZE2014F12A3181EFE)

26. BANK BORROWINGS 26. SMITHER
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET

Unsecured bank loans EIERIRITER 1,939,042 1,671,687
Carrying amount repayable: HEERREE

Within one year —FA 704,079 559,197

More than one year, BH—F BT BERF

but not exceeding two years 589,697 694,827
More than two years but not BEMEETBE RS
more than five years 639,650 395,446
1,933,426 1,649,470

Carrying amount of bank loans that are RBEHRER—FAEER

repayable within one year from the BBRIBER 2RERKR 2

end of the reporting period and contain RITEREREE

a repayment on demand clause 5,616 16,598
Carrying amount of bank loans that are RIERREHRA—FANEEE

not repayable within one year from the BB AIBER 2RER G2

end of the reporting period but contain RITEFEREE

a repayment on demand clause (RREBBETIIR)

(shown under current liabilities) - 5619

1,939,042 1,671,687
Less: Amounts due within one year B —FARERNSERNREEE
shown under current liabilities TER (709,695) (581,414)

Amounts shown under non-current liabilities ~ RAIERE B E FFIR 1,229,347 1,090,273

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had available banking facilities
of approximately HK$2,277,039,000 (2013: HK$1,919,201,000)
of which HK$1,939,042,000 (2013: HK$1,671,687,000) was

utilised.
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The exposure of the Group’s fixed-rate borrowings and the

contractual maturity dates are as follows:

Fixed-rate borrowings:
Within one year
In more than one year but not more
than two years
In more than two years but not more
than five years

BRI
—F

B —FETEEME
BHMEENBHES

At the end of the reporting period, all of the Group's remaining

borrowings carried interest at variable rates.

The ranges of effective interest rates per annum on the Group's

borrowings are as follows:

Effective interest rate:
Fixed-rate borrowings

Variable-rate borrowings

CLIES
B ELEE

BT

The following amounts of bank borrowings are denominated in
currencies other than the functional currency of the relevant group

entities.

US dollars
HK dollars
Euro

=TT
BT
BT
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AEEZBEEMNERERRAOBHE W

I
2014

HK$'000
Tz

95,385

23,846

119,231

2013
HK$'000
TR
79,487

95,385

25,128

200,000

RBERR - REBPTA R TRITIER

PR -

REBERCEREFERGELNT
2014 2013
3.68% 3.68%
1.60% to 1.75% to
2.88% over 2.7% over
HIBOR or HIBOR or
LIBOR LIBOR
BARBITRIE iﬁi%ﬁiﬁlﬁ%
FERMH  HELBH
RITRIZE HITRIZE
FEMI.6% HFEMI.75%
£2.88% £2.7%

AEE ZRITIEFIGAERERES
EUINERTRESAT -

2014
HK$’000
TR

605,889
1,300,000
33,153

1,939,042

2013
HK$'000
TAT

722,217
949,470

1,671,687
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

217.

28.

e BRI EE

N
(For the year ended 31 December 2014)

(BZE2014F12A31BILFE)

SHARE CAPITAL 27. B&F
Number of
ordinary
shares Amount
EERDHE Eax )
HK$'000
FHT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each: BIREEO. 1T 2 LR :
Authorised: vl
At 1 January 2013, 31 December 2013 R2013F 1818 « 2013F 128318 K
and 31 December 2014 20145F12H31H 5,000,000,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: BIRBR
At 1 January 2013, 31 December 2013 R2013F1A1R  2013F 12318 K&
and 31 December 2014 20145F12H31H 825,000,000 82,500

There was no movement in the Company's share capital for both
years.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company's share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted
pursuant to a resolution passed on 14 December 2001 for the
purpose of providing incentives to directors and eligible persons.
The Scheme had a term of 10 years from its adoption and therefore
it expired on 13 December 2010. On 23 April 2010, share options
with a market value of HK$163,430,000 were granted and the
provision of the Scheme shall remain in full force and the holder
of all options granted under the Scheme prior to such termination
shall be entitled to exercise the outstanding options pursuant to the
terms of the Scheme until expiry of the said options.

Under the Scheme, the Company's board of directors could at their
discretion grant options to (i) any director, employee or consultant
of the Company or a company in which the Company holds an
equity interest or a subsidiary of such company (“Affiliate”); or (ii)
any discretionary trust whose discretionary objects include any
director, employee or consultant of the Company or an Affiliate;
or (iii) a company beneficially owned by any director, employee
or consultant of the Company or an Affiliate; or (iv) any customer,
supplier or adviser as may be determined by the directors of the
Company from time to time to subscribe for the shares of the
Company.
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RRAR fERtE

NAFRE—BR2001F 128 148
BZRBER - DERMNEBRRES (5
) URBESREEBRAL - 518l
HERMBET10FAB R - WHR20104F
128138 /@ ° R2010F4 8230 ' E
T R EE IR ¥ T (B A 163,430,000 7T
MIRERFTEDAER - MABRTH
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T o
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Options granted must be taken up within 21 days of the date of
grant. The maximum number of shares of the Company in respect
of which options might be granted under the Scheme was not
to exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company any
point in time. The maximum number of shares of the Company in
respect of which options might be granted to any individual in any
12-month period was not to exceed 1% of shares of the Company
in issue on the last date of such 12-month period unless approval
of the shareholders of the Company was obtained in accordance
with the Listing Rules.

Options could be exercised during such period (including the
minimum period, if any, for which an option must be held before it
could be exercised) as determined by the directors of the Company
(which shall be less than ten years from the date of issue of the
relevant option). Options could be granted without initial payment.
The exercise price was equal to the highest of (i) nominal value of
the shares of the Company; (ii) the closing price per share as stated
in the Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheets on the date of the
grant of the options; and (iii) the average closing price per share as
stated in the Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of the grant of the
options.

The following table discloses movements of the Company's share
options during the year ended 31 December, 2014:

Outstanding
Exercise at
Director Date of grant price  Exercisable period 1.1.2013
R2013%
1A18
E= R AH I8 g3 AT
HK$
BT
Lee Man Yan 2342010 6.69  23.4.2011-22.42015 27,500,000
FXB 2342010 6.69  23.4.2012-22.42015 27,500,000
2342010 6.69  23.4.2013-22.42015 27,500,000
Total e 82,500,000
Erercisable atthe  RFRAI{THE

end of the year
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R T 2 B ANER A EE21K
MR - BRRIEET ST B 2 BIE
Pk ZBMER  EEARERST
BHEBARRDBEITRAZ10% ° BRI
RIZ ETIRGIES AR RRRIE - &
AIFME 1218 A BRI T EEE B A £
ZEBREZ RS RMNEE - TREBR
1218 AR 2 &1& — BB #1TRD

1% °

BRETNESSET <A BHRZH
AT A EBREEF 106R - I
BREBRAER TITENLARAE Z&E
HARR (208 ) ) T THE - BRI A B/ 1E
BB R Z BER TR - AR T
SRR ZEBEERITEEROAAR
Befp 2 EME  (HBRORELERER R
BRE A RERM 2 ZREHE
R (i) BN B B RIS ER 5 B
HEMR T2 B HRERMAIZFHEK
WhfE -

HE2014F12A31BIEFER » AR
RIBAEE B 25T

Number of share options
BREHA
Granted/ Granted/
exercised/ exercised/
lapsed/ lapsed/
cancelled Outstanding cancelled Outstanding
during at during at
the year 1.1.2014 theyear  31.12.2014
R R2014F R R0
Bt/ 78/ 1818 R/  12A31R
KN/ BUH HARTE KRB AT
- 27,500,000 - 27,500,000
- 27,500,000 - 27,500,000
- 27,500,000 - 27,500,000
- 82,500,000 - 82,500,000
82,500,000 82,500,000
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(BZE2014F12A31BILFE)

28. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

The options granted on 23 April 2010 may be exercised in
accordance with the following terms:

®

(ii)

(ii)

(iv)

The

up to one-third of the options (i.e. options for an aggregate of
27,500,000 shares) will be exercisable from 23 April 2011 to
22 April 2015 (both dates inclusive) if the consolidated net
profit after taxation of the Group (“Net Profit”) for the financial
year ended 31 December 2010 equals or exceeds 115% of
the Net Profit for the financial year ended 31 December 2009;

up to two-thirds of the options (i.e. options for an aggregate
of 55,000,000 shares) will be exercisable from 23 April 2012
to 22 April 2015 (both dates inclusive) if the Net Profit for the
financial year ended 31 December 2011 equals or exceeds
130% of the Net Profit for the financial year ended 31
December 2009;

all of the options (i.e. options for an aggregate of 82,500,000
shares) will be exercisable from 23 April 2013 to 22 April
2015 (both dates inclusive) if the Net Profit for the financial
year ended 31 December 2012 equals or exceeds 145% of
the Net Profit for the financial year ended 31 December 2009;

to the extent any options have not become exercisable by
23 April 2014 (i.e. options for an aggregate of 82,500,000
shares), they will be exercisable from 23 April 2014 to 22 April
2015 (both dates inclusive) if the Net Profit for the financial
year ended 31 December 2013 equals or exceeds 160% of
the Net Profit for the financial year ended 31 December 2009.

option shall lapse if the options holder by reason of voluntary

resignation or by termination of his employment in accordance with
the termination provisions of his contract of employment.

At 31 December 2014, the number of shares in respect of which
options had been granted and remained outstanding under the
Scheme represented 10% (2013: 10%) of the issued share capital
at that date.
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28. FRBERHERTEI(Z)

R2010F 4 A23 B % H MBI R AR IR
LA Z {6501 T1E -

0)

(i)

(iil)

()

WEZE2010F12 A31 B IEBIBF
EARSE 2 FFEESENSBIEE
ZE2009F 12 A3 1B It HEE 2
FREM115% 0 BlsxZ =92 —
&Y B i 7 (BN 2 5t 3£ 27,500,000 A%
BEAAE) BRI R2011E4 8238 E
2015F4A22H(BREERMA)A
1718

MEAE20115E12 831 B LI B4E
&2 3T BAEER KB BEE2009
F12A31HIEHBFE 2 FFER
130% @ BISZZ =92 — g IR E
(BN 2 5155,000,000 0% B8 A% 42 ) 5 7]
20124 823HE2015F4 22
A(BEEERX)ATTE

WEZE2012F12 A31 B I BF
B2 F A BREER B AEE2009
F12A3 AT BEE 2 FHE
A91450% @ Bl 2 SRR (BN R 5Tk
82,500,000/% B A% 4 ) #% AT A 2013
F4R238E2015F4A228 (84
BREMAR)RITE

fid & (E {7 B8 AR 4 ( BD 2 &+ #
82,500,000/% i J #E ) B £20144F
423 AW RAEIESITHERE - WE
ZE2013F12A31BILMBEE 2
7 A1) B 55 70 ok R #B AL 2= 2009
12A31HIEREE 2 FH BN
160% @ A= ZPEE AR A AT A 2014
FAFA23AE2015F48228 (83
BHEREMAR)RITE °

AR A AR B AR R B H B
BAEKZ R IEXHAR ILERER - BBAE
R o

R2014F12A831H » BRACERLER
BEEFEITHRITENROEE R
REWNHBHE BEITRA10% (2013 -
10%) °



The total fair value of the share options granted under the Scheme
on 23 April 2010 is approximately HK$163,430,000, calculated
using the Binomial Model (the “Model"). The inputs into the Model
and the estimated fair value of the share options are as follows:

Share price at date of grant AR B ERR(E
Exercise price 1TEE

Expected volatility TAHIK R
Expected life of share options FERETREIF

BEREE
2[R R 7 K
BlREz A TE

Expected dividend yield
Risk-free rate
Fair value of share option

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical volatility
of share price over the previous five years. The expected life used
in the Model has been adjusted, based on management's best
estimate, for the effects of non transferability, exercise restrictions
and behavioural considerations.

The risk free interest rate was estimated based on the yield of the
5-year exchange fund note issued by the Hong Kong Monetary
Authority as of the grant date.

The variables and assumptions used in computing the fair value of
the share options are based on the directors’ best estimate. The
value of an option varies with different variables of certain subjective
assumptions.

Share option expense of Nil (2013: approximately HK$6,000,000)
was recognised in the general and administrative expenses in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income for the year ended 31 December 2014, calculated with
reference to the vesting period.
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20104 A23 H AT g 2 A
E1E %) 5 163,430,000/8 7T » Jh A —
EABR ([RA ) ETE - BE A
BRBRE G ATFEER2YIT ¢

Share options Share options Share options

with an with an with an
exercisable exercisable exercisable
period from  period from  period from
BREZ BREZ BREZ
TR TEHR TEHA
23.4.2011 23.4.2012 23.4.2013
to £ to to
22.4.2015 22.4.2015 22.4.2015
HK$6.69 HK$6.69 HK$6.69
6.6978 7T 6.698 7T 6.69/8 7T
HK$6.69 HK$6.69 HK$6.69
6.698 7T 6.6975 7T 6.6975 7T
53.62% 53.62% 53.62%

per annum per annum per annum
FF53.620  FF5362%  FF53.62%
5 years 5 years 5 years

5% 5% 54

4.75% 4.75% 4.75%
2.03% 2.03% 2.03%
HK$1.78 HK$2.02 HK$2.15
1.78% 7T 20247 21587

EHRERBERFARIREZE LK
REE - RAMRAREMFHERTA
BE TERFIRTTAEEITZER
BEEREMG AR -

EEARFERESSBMERRY BEH
SMER S % M Bt A AR -

YR BRI BB AT EE
TR RS - BRREESET
THBR TREHMEE -

REZE2014F 12 A31BLFEZEHE
B k2B REROITEHE B I EE
B H (2013 © 496,000,000
7T) c WIAGRBHRZETE -
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29. OPERATING LEASES 29. EEHEH

2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHETT
Minimum lease payments paid under operating XA Bt A =YL LTHL
leases in respect of office premises during ZEERERK
the year 102 96

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases in respect of office premises and machinery HK$113,000
(2013: HK$92,000) which were due within one year.

Included in the commitments above, HK§107,000 (2013:
HK$92,000) is related to commitments for future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases with Lee & Man
Paper (note 33).

The commitments for operating lease payments represent rentals
payable by the Group for office properties. Leases are negotiated for
an average term of one year (2013: two years). Rentals are based
on the terms specified in the lease agreements.
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RIREHAR - AREEHGE T 0] Bds A 9t
NEYERMEEE 2 RRFEBEE K
%85 113,00078 7T (20134 : 92,0008
Jo)  EREARE1FEARA ©

f bt AGE R o BRIE SR FT T S2 N A]
PSSR ZARRERBENTA
107,000/ 78 (20134 : 92,000/87T) (F
$33) o

REHENFTAEREARERERAE
MERMNzEE - HEZ FHEHH—
F(2013%F : MF) - BEHREEER
NI TE RRETE



Capital expenditure contracted for but not

provided in the consolidated financial B AR
statements in respect of the acquisition of RIEEE

— property, plant and equipment —W% - BE K&
— intangible asset —EBEE

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contractual
commitments for acquisition of land use rights of HK$31,575,000
(2013: HK$41,128,000). It also had commitments for granting
shareholder’s loan of HK$32,398,000 (2013: HK$40,468,000)
to Southern Hill Company Limited to cover the initial costs and
expenses of undertaking the pier construction in Jiangxi to date.

Defined contribution scheme

The Group operates the Mandatory Provided Fund Scheme (“MPF
Scheme”) for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group, in
funds under the control of trustees. The Group contributes monthly
the lower of HK$1,500 (HK$1,250 from 1 January 2014 to 31
May 2014) or 5% of the relevant monthly payroll costs to the MPF
Scheme, which contribution is matched by employees.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries in the PRC are members
of state-managed retirement benefit schemes operated by the
government of the PRC. The PRC subsidiaries are required to
contribute certain percentage of payroll costs to the retirement
benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the retirement benefit schemes is to make
the specified contributions.

The total cost charged to profit or loss of HK$9,972,000 (2013:

HK$6,094,000) represents contributions payable to these schemes
by the Group in respect of the current accounting period.
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ERTHERN A MK T

2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TATT
426,744 557,620
87,819 =
514,563 557,620

RFEBHR  ANEBE R LU
31,575,000/ 7T (20134 : 41,128,000
BIT)BA TR - BIARKET
32,398,000/ 7T (20134 : 40,468,000
BID) RN ER TEERRA B A E&
EEETIANGEES R IINARZH o

REBAMEARERNEER Y —THR
HEerrEl([aEesrEl]) - BESFTE
ZEERAEBZEESHAIZE WA
ZEEAIER] o NEE MR FES B R
1,500/ 7T (H2014%1 A 1HZE201445
A318 /1,250 7T ) 36 B& A 5Bk
RZ5%(ARIEEA%E) - MiEE ZH3K
LEEARF o

AEEzHEMNBRABIZEEHATE
BRER2BEERABNTEZKE -
ZETENMBARARFNASXZET
B FRREFIE IR - AREY
BRRAREMNFEZEERIELEEZ

R o

REHFEAN - AEBEELEFEFH
JiE 1~ . 7058 59,972,000 7T (20134
6,094,000/870) * BEBHEEIE=F T
E—E o
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33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

Apart from the balances with related parties as set out in notes 21

(BZE2014F12A31BILFE)

33. REXHRIER

BRETE21 K 25 P51 8l 2 B A L4 ER

and 25, the Group had significant transactions with related parties AN ANESEERRE B A TR FRFTHEITZ
during the year as follows: BARSZWT :
Name of related party Relationship Nature of transactions 2014 2013
BRESE% B& REMHE HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHETT
Connected parties
BEAL
Lee & Man Paper A company beneficially Electricity and steam fee paid 76,161 76,275
BEAR owned and controlled ENBERERE
by Mr. Lee Wan Keung Fuel expense paid 396 470
HEEREEERER ERTRE B
et PA/NS] Rental expense paid 1,919 1,705
EfEeER
Sales of chemical products 13,175 4,792
HE(ITEM
Electricity and steam fee 35,647 17,819
received
BWEERERE
Rental income received 1,936 829
A KA
Utility expense paid - 145
ENRAER
Purchase of raw materials 451 -
BERE
Lee & Man Management A company beneficially Management consultant fee 576 535

Company Limited
BEXEEARAR

Except for the related party transactions and balances described
above, the Group has entered into a joint venture arrangement
with Lee & Man Paper. Details of the joint venture and the other
commitment to the joint venture are set out in notes 21 and 31

respectively.

owned and controlled by

Mr. Lee Wan Keung
HEERELESHEE

R AEH 2 X7

paid
EREEERE
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33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES 33. BEX SRR (Z)

34.

(CONTINUED)
The remuneration of directors and other members of key EERHMFEEEREKERT N 2B
management during the year was as follows: ST ¢
2014 2013
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Short-term employee benefits FEEIE TRA 13,682 13,433
Post-employment benefits RIKRERH 34 30
Share-based payment performance VARR 1 7 EfE 2 16
related incentive RIEES - 6,000
13,716 19,463

MAIJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

34. FEIFEHNHRS

During the year, purchases of property, plant and equipment of FRN BEDE KBRERRIKHE
HK$347,133,000 (2013: HK$411,266,000) and prepaid lease 4 347,133,000 # JT ( 2013 4
payments of Nil (2013: HK$9,046,000), respectively, were settled 411,266,000/ 70) R T8 E 508

through transfer of deposits paid.

(20134 : 9,046,000/ 7T ) Jy 5 Bl £
FEENDMNTEEA -
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BB R

(BZE2014F12A31BILFE)

35. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE

COMPANY

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31 December

35. ARFEEMBELF

R2014F K&2013F 12 A31HAAR Z

2014 and 2013 are as follows: TFEMBRBFBAT
Nominal value of issued
Place of and fully paid share Attributable
Name of subsidiary incorporation capital/paid-in capital equity interest Principal activities*
BRIRBERAEE
WELRERE TR L i 2 BARA s FTEXB
2014 2013
Changshu Yunhong Realty PRC Paid-in capital - 100% 100%  Property development
Limited i RVB120,000,000 NERR
EREREXBRAA BamRA -
AR#120,000,0007C
Guangdong Lee & Man Chemical R&D  PRC Paid-in capital - - 100%  Research and development of
Limited (note 1) A US$2,020,000 chemical products
BREXC ITHERRARHH1) ERRA- L IER
2,020,000%7T
High Sky Chemicals Limited Labuan, Malaysia ~ Ordinary share - 100% 100%  Trading of chemical products
MEE - BRAz  US$10000 tIERES
TR -
10,000%7T
Jiangsu Lee & Man Chemical Limited ~ PRC Paid-in capital - 100% 100%  Manufacture and sales of
(note) A US$78,750,000 industrial chemical products
IEHECIARAR EdlRA- EERBETIEIER
(Hrz) 78,750,000% 7T
Jiangyi Lee & Man Chemical Limited ~ PRC Paid-in capital - 100% 100%  Manufacture and sales of
(note) # US$53,702,394 and industrial chemical products
TREXCTARAR (Hit) RVB1,048,012,473 EERBETRLIER
BEaRA-
53,702394% LR
AR¥1,0480124737T
Lee & Man (International) Investment  Hong Kong Ordinary shares — 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited BA HK$100 BAER
BY(ER)REERAF TEm-
10087
Lee & Man Chemical Investment British Virgin Islands ~ Shares - 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited RERTES US$1 RERR
B IRERRAT [
1T
# The principal activities were carried out in the PRC and Hong Kong. * FEXBHEREREE -
note:  These companies are registered in the form of wholly-owned foreign Bfat . ZERREALINEBEEE AT

investment enterprise.
Hiat] - ZEEREN -

note 1: The entity was deregistered during the year.
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35.

36.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE
COMPANY (CONTINUED)

Only Lee & Man Chemical Investment Limited was directly held by
the Company.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results or assets of
the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion
of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at the
end of the year, or at any time during the year.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure the entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance. The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged
from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which
includes the bank loans disclosed in note 26, net of bank balances
and cash, and equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising issued share capital and various reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
periodically. As part of this review, the directors consider the cost of
capital and the risks associated with each class of capital. Based on
recommendations of the directors, the Group will balance its overall
capital structure through the payment of dividends, new share issues
as well as issue of new debts.

929
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(For the year ended 31 December 2014) (& ZE2014F12A3181EFE)

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 37. €T H
37a. Categories of financial instruments 37a. €W T A 235
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Financial assets THEE
Loans and receivables (including cash EREENFIE(BERE RRE
and cash equivalents) Z(EIER) 855,088 1,271,951
Fair value through profit or loss NHEGARR
— derivative financial instruments —TEEmT A 1,269 2,024
Derivative under hedge accounting REHPETHENITET A 31 360
Financial liabilities EHEE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost REEKANCRAE 2,279,416 1,895,108
Fair value through profit or loss ANHEFARR
— derivative financial instruments —PTHESmIA 4,161 =
Derivatives under hedge accounting REHETHENITETR 848 3313
37b. Financial risk management objectives and policies 37b. MR EE A ERBK
The Group's major financial instruments include trade and AEBZFEcM T ABERKE
other receivable, loan to a joint venture, amount due from SREMFIE EECEER &
a joint venture, bank balances and cash, trade and other B REIWFHIE « RITEHBEIR
payables, bank borrowings, amount due to a related company T BNESHREMFIA - RITE
and derivative financial instruments. Details of these financial M ERBEARRERITES R
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks TH - ZE4mI AEFBEREREK
associated with these financial instruments include market risk HIWE - ZEemIAEMERRR
(currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. BIETSRR (% ERR RN ER
The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. ) EERBERBESRAR
The management manages and monitors these exposures to T &5 o fa] B R 7% LB 2 I
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely Ke-BEEEEREEREZSRAR
and effective manner. VARE(R MBS B A RO R EUE S 2 18
i
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37b.Financial risk management objectives and policies

37b. AR EEBERBEK(E)

(Continued)
Market risk mE R
(i) Currency risk () EEREE

The Group mainly operated in the PRC and the exposure
in exchange rate risks mainly arose from fluctuations of
foreign currencies, including HK dollars and US dollars
against the functional currency of the relevant group
entities. Material transactions and balances that are not
denominated in the functional currency of the relevant
entities give rise to foreign currency exposure as follows:

(i) US dollars — in terms of loan to a joint venture, bank
balances and cash, bank borrowings and derivative
financial instruments.

(i) HK dollars — in terms of bank balances and cash,
trade and other payables, bank borrowings and
derivative financial instruments.

Exchange rate fluctuations and market trend have
always been the concern of the Group. Management
will monitor the foreign currency exposure closely and
consider the use of hedging instruments when the need
arises.

Non-derivative foreign currency monetary assets and
monetary liabilities

At the end of the reporting period, the carrying amount
of the Group's monetary assets and monetary liabilities
denominated in currencies other than the functional
currency of the relevant group entities are as follows:

Assets BE
HK dollars BT
US dollars =S
Liabilities 8f&
HK dollars BIT
US dollars ETT
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AEEETENRBILEEER
EXRREREZHINE(BIEE
TTRATL) LIRS E TS
TEE SR B FTE A - WIE
LMBFEJEEE BEEET|EE
KRR 5 R bEEREEHE 2 INES [ B
ZZD—F :

0) %ﬁ REEREZE
CIRITEBR KBS - R
{ f’ﬂ& /Tiﬁ% TH-

(i) BT-—MNB|ITEHREER
T BNESREAMK
B RITEREITES R
IH-

REE—[A R EERRS) KH
BB o EEJ"‘ A EE AN
JERE R Hi}mﬁﬁff/#‘l/ﬁ\ °

FTENNE T HEEREHR
]

RS IR - ANEE R LAFERES
BREGEEE LN ¥R
NEeMEERSHEE  HE
HEMAT :

2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TATT
1,079 1,565
97,958 91,400
1,419,989 700,104
486,384 971,687
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

37b.Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

0)

Currency risk (Continued)

Non-derivative foreign currency monetary assets and
monetary liabilities (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group's sensitivity to a 5%
appreciation and depreciation in the functional currency
of the relevant group entities (i.e. RMB and HK dollars)
against the above foreign currencies. 5% is the sensitivity
rate and represents management's assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates.
The sensitivity analysis adjusts their translation at the
period end for a 5% change in foreign currency rates. A
strengthening of the functional currency of the relevant
group entities against the above foreign currencies would
give rise to the following impact to post-tax profit for the
year and vice versa.

37. @MIR(E)

37b. I RBREEREREE(E)

B mER (&)
() E¥RBE)

FTENNE T HEER MR
E(#)

GRS

TRFFAED A S B A FE R
SEERMEER(AARK
RATT) B SN Es E A
N T F&50% 2 BURKE © 500H) B
R E MR KR E B E TG INEIE
EHEIB A RERL - TEHARES
50 R INETE ReE - FREAM
PE 5 = RE S UMD TR 1E
MR - ZEESEER 2
BEEE R NS R oR B
B BoFERREETF G

=

TE RZIA -

2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Monetary assets and liabilities: BE¥MEERAE
Increase on post-tax profit for the year 4 /E [ F 1% F 12 A0
— HK dollars —BTT 70,950 34,927
— US dollars = 18,289 39,497
Derivative financial instruments trEzA T A

During the year, the Group entered into several foreign
currency forward contracts (2013: a structured foreign
currency forward contract) with banks to reduce its
exposure to currency risk of US$ against RMB and Euro
against US$. The structured foreign currency forward
contract and foreign currency forward contracts are not
accounted for under hedge accounting. The Group
is required to estimate the fair value of the derivative
financial statements at the end of the reporting period,
which therefore exposed the Group to foreign currency
risk.
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37b.Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

0

(i)

Currency risk (Continued)

Derivative financial instruments (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

Structured foreign currency forward contracts and foreign
currency forward contracts — not under hedge accounting

If the exchange rates of US$ against RMB and Euro
against US$ had been 5% higher/lower while all other
input variables of the valuation models were held
constant, the Group's post-tax profit would increase
(decrease) as follows:

Higher by 5% 2 hn5%
Derivative financial instruments PTESMTA

Lower by 5% 5%
Derivative financial instrument PTEEmTA

Interest rate risk
Non-derivative financial assets and liabilities

The Group's cash flow interest rate risks mainly relate
to its variable rate borrowings (see note 26 for details
of these borrowings). It is the Group's policy to keep its
borrowings at fixed interest rate so as to minimise the
cash flow interest rate risk. The Group’s bank balances
also have exposure to cash flow interest rate risk due to
the fluctuation of the prevailing market interest rate on
bank balances.

The Group's exposures to interest rates on financial
liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk management
section of this note. The Group cash flow interest rate risk
is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of HIBOR and
LIBOR arising from the Group's HK dollars and US dollars
denominated borrowings.
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LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED EX{t THRA A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2014)

(BZE2014F12A31BILFE)

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

37b.Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(ii)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Non-derivative financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for non-derivative
financial instruments at the end of the reporting period.
For variable rate bank borrowings, to the extent that
they are not hedged by effective instruments, and
bank balances, the analysis is prepared assuming the
stipulated change taking place at the beginning of the
financial year and held constant throughout both years
in the case of instruments that have floating rates. 10
(2013: 10) basis point and 50 (2013: 50) basis point
increase or decrease are used by the management for
the assessment of the possible change in interest rates of
variable rate bank balances and variable rate borrowings,
respectively.

If interest rates had been 10 basis point higher or lower
and all other variables were held constant, the Group's
post-tax profit for the year ended 31 December 2014
would increase or decrease by HK$20,000 (201 3:
HK$867,000). This is mainly attributable to the Group's
exposure to interest rates on its variable rate bank
balances.

If interest rates had been 50 basis point higher or lower
and all other variables were held constant, the Group's
post-tax profit for the year ended 31 December 2014
would decrease or increase by HK$6,893,000 (2013:
HK$3,758,000). This is mainly attributable to the Group's
exposure to interest rates on its variable rate borrowings.
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37b.Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(ii)

Interest rate risk (Continued)
Derivative financial instruments

During the year, the Group entered into several interest
rate swap contracts with banks to reduce its exposure to
interest rate risk in relation to variable rate borrowings (see
note 26 for details of these borrowings). All outstanding
interest rate swaps are accounted for under hedge
accounting. The Group is required to estimate the fair
value of the interest rate swap contracts at the end of the
reporting period, which therefore exposed the Group to
interest rate risk.

Interest rate sensitivity

If forward interest rates had been 50 (2013: 50) basis
points higher and all other variable were held constant,
the Group's post-tax profit and equity would increase as
follows and vice versa:

At 31 December 2014

At 31 December 2013
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LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED EX{t THRA A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR MR
(For the year ended 31 December 2014) (& ZE2014F12A3181EFE)

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 37. @MIR(E)

37b. I RBREEREREE(E)

37b.Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)
Credit risk

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in the event
of the counterparties’ failure to perform their obligations in
relation to each class of recognised financial assets is the
carrying amount of those assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position. The Group is also exposed
to concentration of credit risk as a substantial portion of its
sales is generated from a limited number of customers. At
31 December 2014, the top five customers of the Group
accounted for about 23% (2013: 249%) of the Group's trade
receivables. The Group also granted loan and advance to a
joint venture (note 21). In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has delegated a team responsible
for determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the management
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual trade debt
and loan/advance to a joint venture at the end of reporting
period to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made
for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly
reduced.

The credit risk on bank deposits is limited because the

counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies.
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37b.Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)
Liquidity risk

In the management of the Group's liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents
deemed adequate by the management to finance the Group's
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuation in cash flows.
The Group also has unutilised banking facilities (note 26) of
approximately HK$337,997,000 (2013: HK$247,514,000)
to meet its short-term working capital requirements. The
management monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings and
ensure compliance with loan covenants.

The following table details the Group's remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities based on the
agreed repayment terms. The table has been drawn up based
on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based
on the earliest date on which the Group can be required to
pay. Specifically, bank loans with a repayment on demand
clause are included in the earliest time band regardless of the
probability of the banks choosing to exercise their rights. The
maturity dates for other non-derivative financial liabilities are
based on the agreed repayment dates. The table includes both
interest and principal cash flows. To the extent the interest
flows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived
from interest rate at the end of the reporting period.

In addition, the following table details the Group's liquidity
analysis for its derivative financial instruments. The tables have
been drawn up based on the undiscounted contractual net
cash (inflows) and outflows on derivative financial instruments
that settle on a net basis. When the amount payable is not
fixed, the amount disclosed has been determined by reference
to the projected interest rates as illustrated by the yield curves
existing at the end of the reporting period. The liquidity analysis
for the Group's derivative financial instruments are prepared
based on the contractual maturities as the management
consider that the contractual maturities are essential for an
understanding of the timing of the cash flows of derivatives.
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LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED EX{t THRA A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
mE SRR MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2014) (EZE2014F12A31HIEFE)

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 37. @MIRARE)
37b.Financial risk management objectives and policies 37b. AR EEBERBEK(E)
(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) TmEEEEE(E)
Weighted
average Total
effective ~ On demand Over undiscounted Carrying
interestrate  or0-30days  31-60 days  61-90days 91-365 days 365days  cash flows amount
BEN= EEfE fitil St}

MEFIH 0-30% 31-60% 61-90% 91-365% 365K BEmESH REE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
% TAR TAR TAR FHR FAR T Thn

As at 31 December 2014 ®2014512A318
Non-derivative financial liabilities FirtEBEE
Non-interest bearing ERAR - 3 7,598 9,031 11,032 - 340,373 340,373
Fived interest rate instruments EETA 3.68 - 23,990 - 78171 123,618 21,1719 214,615
Variable interest rate instruments HZETR 230 33,579 25,408 213,270 305,761 1,184,980 1,762,998 1,724,428
346,291 56,996 222,301 390,964 1,308,598 2,325,150 2,279,416
Derivative financial instruments fitE@IA
- net settlement -BEFE
Interest rate swaps pilkser 106 - 326 407 20 859 848
Foreign currency foward contracts — MEEREAH) - - 4,161 - - 4,161 4,161
106 - 4,487 407 20 5,020 5,009
Total
On demand Over  undiscounted Carying
or0-30days  31-60days  61-90days  91-365 days 365 days cash flows amount
0-30% 31-60% 61-90K  91-365K 365K RemEt RafE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThAL TET ThL TET THL THL TR
As at 31 December 2013 #2013%12A318
Non-derivative financial liabilities FiitaBEE
Non-interest bearing ESBfE 140,543 25,505 7215 46,632 3,526 23421 223421
Fixed interest rate instruments TEIA - 19,992 - 61,809 124,948 206,749 200,000
Variable interest rate instruments HZETR 22,994 - 136,616 349,973 997,79 1,507,379 1,471,687
163,537 45,497 143,831 458414 1,126,270 1,937,549 1,895,108
Derivative financial instruments L BIA
~ net setflement —REFE
Interest rate swaps st 1,008 - 708 914 729 3,359 3313
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37b.Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued)

Bank loans with a repayment on demand clause are
included in the “on demand or 0-30 days” time band in
the above maturity analysis. As at 31 December 2014, the
aggregate carrying amounts of these bank loans amounted to
HK$5,616,000 (2013: HK$22,717,000). Taking into account
the Group's financial position, the directors do not believe that
it is probable that the banks will exercise their discretionary
rights to demand immediate repayment. The directors believe
that such bank loans will be repaid within one to five years
after the reporting date of 31 December 2014 in accordance
with the scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan
agreements. The following table summarises the maturity
analysis of bank loans with a repayment on demand clause
based on agreed scheduled repayments set out in the loan
agreements.

Weighted
average
effective
interestrate  0-30days  31-60 days
ERA=
MELHSE 0-30% 31-60%
% HK$'000 HK$'000
Y% TER T
As at 31 December 2014 R20145128318
Bank loans BITER 217 1,402 1,408
As at 31 December 2013 #2013512A31R
Bank loans KRN 221 1368 1378

The amounts included above for variable interest rate
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities is subject
to change if changes in variable interest rates differ to those
estimates of interest rates determined at the end of the
reporting period.
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e BRI EE

(For the year ended 31 December 2014) (& ZE2014F12A3181EFE)

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
37c. Fair value measurements of financial instruments

This note provides information about how the Group
determines fair values of various financial assets and financial

37. @MIR(E)

37c. ERMI A AFEE

A ERHEERAREZRERE
ELeRBEATHEZEESR

liabilities.

(i) Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and () WREEF MR EZ N FEGE
financial liabilities that are measured at fair value on CAREETHEERTHEE
a recurring basis ZAFE
Some of the Group's financial assets and financial AEEHHDCHEERESRE
liabilities are measured at fair value at the end of each BREFHREHRIZAFEET
reporting period. The following table gives information E - TRIABHHAZES
about how the fair values of these financial assets and MEENERABBEATEZE
financial liabilities are determined (in particular, the EAAN(CERFACHER
valuation technique(s) and inputs used). ERBAEIE) ©
Financial assets/ Fair value Valuation technique(s)
financial liabilities Fair value as at hierarchy and key input(s)
SREE/SRAR RUTBHZAYE ATLERF HERTREEGABE

31/12/2014 31/12/2013

1) Foreign currency forward Assets Nil Level 2 Discounted cash flow. Future cash
contracts classified - HK$1,269,000 = E2 flows are estimated based on
as derivative financial B forward exchange rates (from
instruments in the —1,269,000 7T observable forward exchange
consolidated statement of  Ljabilities rates at the end of the reporting
financial position - HK$4,161,000 period) and contracted forward

1) Rza MBI RE a1 rates, discounted at a rate that
AEBTESRTEA —4,161,00057% reflects the credit risk of various
ZINBEEREH counterparties.

HBRREM  RERIIMNERBE
(RS IARTREMEREING
FHE)REFTRMERL X R
EFARRR SR - WHA—1ERe
HRMEHFEERBOLER
ZEH -

2) Interest rate swaps Assets Assets Level 2 Discounted cash flow. Future cash
classified as derivative - HK$31,000 - HK$360,000 Wk flows are estimated based on
financial instruments inthe  && BE forward interest rates (from
consolidated statement of —31,0005 7T ~360,000357T observable yield curves at the
financial position Liabilities Liabilities end of the reporting period)

2) NERIBRAR - HK$848,000 - HK$3,313,000 and contracted interest rates,
DEAHSRTA a1 aE discounted at a rate that
> F|kss —848,000357% 3,313,007 reflects the credit risk of various
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37c. Fair value measurements of financial instruments

(i)

(Continued)
(i) Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and

financial liabilities that are measured at fair value on
a recurring basis (Continued)

Financial assets/

financial liabilities Fair value as at
LREE/SRER RUAT RS2 AYE
31/12/2014 31/12/2013
3) Structured foreign currency ~ Nil Assets
forward contract classified & - HK$2,024,000
as derivative financial BE
instruments in the —2,024,000% T

consolidated statement of
financial position

3) MEAMBIRRRE DA
ATESRMIAL
ERIINEREAN

There were no transfers between 3 Levels in both years.

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that
are not measured at fair value on a recurring basis (but
fair value disclosures are required)

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial
assets and financial liabilities (excluding derivative instruments)
recognised in the consolidated financial statements
approximate their fair values.

As at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013, the fair
value measurements of all derivative financial instruments of
the Group are categorised into Level 2. The fair values of the
financial assets and financial liabilities included in the Level 2
category have been determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on a discounted cash flow
analysis, with the most significant inputs being the discount
rate that reflects the credit risk of counterparties.
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EMIAZAPEFEE)

() WREEFEMEEEZLFEFTE
ZAEEHEERTHEE
Z R FEE)

Fair value Valuation technique(s)
hierarchy and key input(s)
AFERH RERTREZRAEE
Level 2 Discounted cash flow. Future cash
£ flows are estimated based on

(i)

forward exchange rates (from
observable forward exchange
rates at the end of the reporting
period) and contracted forward
rates, discounted at a rate that
reflects the credit risk of various
counterparties.
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LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED EX{t THRA A

(For the year ended 31 December 2014) (#Z=2014F12A3181EFE)

37d.Financial assets and financial liabilities subject to
offsetting, enforceable master netting arrangements

and similar agreements

The disclosures set out in the tables below include financial
assets and financial liabilities that are subject to an enforceable
master netting arrangement or similar agreement that covers
similar financial instruments, irrespective of whether they
are offset in the Group's consolidated statement of financial

position.

Financial assets subject to offsetting, enforceable master

netting arrangements and similar agreements

Gross amounts
of recognised
consolidated

financial
assets
ERAGRE
tREELE
HK$'000
THET
As at 31 December 2014  A2014512A318
Bank balances RITEER 481
As at 31 December 2013  #A2013%127331H
Bank balances RITEH 2,257
Derivatives fTETE 2,384
4641

Gross amounts
of recognised
financial
liabilities

set off in the
consolidated
statement

of financial
position
FRUBHRRE
RAHIE S
SREMHE
HK$'000
TiEx
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37d. S R - THTHREEBERHER

Net amounts
of financial
assets
presented

in the
consolidated
statement of
financial
position
FRUBMRRE
RESIHER
EEFE
HK$'000
T

481

2257
2,384

4,641

BlpEceREERSMEE

TREASZFER RIS M A HITE
EHETHSOREE LS QIE:Z
s cREERECREE
THRELTRAEEZ mABTWW{/ﬂ
TN o

HRAH - AJBTTAE G A LR
Bl 2 MEE

Related amounts not
set off in the consolidated
statement of financial position

W ERGEHBRRRA
E#zREeE
Cash
Financial collateral Net
instruments received amount
2K
$WMIE BeEAR FE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET THET
(283) - 198
(1077) = 1,180
(360) = 2,024
(1437) - 3,204
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37d.Financial assets and financial liabilities subject to 37d. S RS - AMTRERERHER
offsetting, enforceable master netting arrangements BlLhEzenEERSRAE
and similar agreements (Continued) (&)
Financial liabilities subject to offsetting, enforceable SRR - AT 7T IR TR
master netting arrangements and similar agreements BFllm#E s AR
Net amounts
Gross amounts of financial Related amounts not
of recognised liabilities set off in the consolidated
financial presented  statement of financial position
assets in the WERGEBBRRRA
Gross amounts  setoffinthe  consolidated B2 EReE
of recognised statement statement of Cash
financial of financial financial Financial collateral Net
liabilities position position instruments received amount
GRBBMRER FEUBRRE
BRAGE  ATHEHEZ  A2INER EUE
tREEAT SREE BERE ERIA ReEAm R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TER TER

As at 31 December 2014  A2014%12831H
Derivatives STAETA (5,009) - (5,009) 283 - (4,726)

As at 31 December 2013  A2013512A318

Derivatives FTETA (3,313) - (3,313) 1,437 - (1,876)

The disclosures set out in the tables above include derivative TR RERBEFEBIRITRIL

contracts through the banks. The related collaterals are ZUTHEERD - FRAERREBEE

included in bank balances. If a default occurs, the banks are RITASERA © BB AV A - RTTHE

able to exercise the right to offset against any favourable TEEE N RS RITER 20T

derivative contracts and/or the collaterals placed. EAEH RSB FRIER G ER
iH o
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LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED 2 X{t THRA A

Financial Summary
by

Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=1+—HLEFE
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FHT T FAET FET

RESULTS ES

Revenue WA 2,138,808 2,155710 1520512 1,329,131 1,560,028
Profit before taxation BRA AT A A 537,786 726,964 418,951 374,957 411,470
Income tax expenses FRiSHisZ (71,969) (50,584) (57,014) (66,225) (81,359)
Profit for the year F R A 465,817 676,380 361,937 308,732 330,111

At 31 December

R+=—A=+—8
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FHIT FHT FAT FET

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERE&E

Total assets BERTE 2,170,164 2,833,682 3,492,177 4,174,634 4,714,045
Total liabilities BEesE (870,866) (1,175,061) (1,598,338) (2,044,026) (2,416,082)
Net assets BEFEE 1,299,298 1,658,621 1,893,839 2,130,608 2,297,963
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Statement of Financial Position of the Company
N1 B B AR 3R

A summarised information statement of financial position of the
Company as at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013 is as

RATR2014512 831 H R2013512
A31 8 2R mstaan T

follows:
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT THETT
ASSETS BE
Investments in a subsidiary A EIRE 221,714 226,685
Amount due from a subsidiary L= NIV G 40,528 13,962
Prepayments TEfSFRIE 172 172
Bank balances RITHEER 162 248
262,576 241,067
LIABILITIES af
Other payables H bR K 4,041 3,715
Bank borrowings SRITIER 5,616 22,217
9,657 25,932
252,919 215,135
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BAK
Share capital AR 82,500 82,500
Reserves (note) GG 170,419 132,635
252,919 215,135
notes:  Reserves fet - R
Share
Share Contributed Translation options Accumulated
premium surplus reserve reserve profits Total
REE BRARH ELfAE BREGE RKEHEF &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FHET FHET FHET
At 1 January 2013 M2013F1H1H 20,307 (102,808) 5,754 157,430 165,947 246,630
Loss for the year FNEIE - - - - (3,226) (3,226)
Recognition of equity-settled TER AR A A B LARR 9
share-based payments RER 2 R - - - 6,000 - 6,000
Dividends 95 = = = - (123750)  (123,750)
Exchange differences arising EEgamaEL 2
from translation JEH =58 - - 6,981 = = 6,981
At 31 December 2013 R2013%12H318 20307  (102,808) 12,735 163,430 38,971 132,635
Profit for the year FRmF) - - - - 157,238 157,238
Dividends L3S, = = = - (115500)  (115,500)
Exchange differences arising HEERmEL 2
from translation N ERE - - (3,954) - - (3,954)
At 31 December 2014 R2014F12A31H 20,307 (102,808) 8,781 163,430 80,709 170,419

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the difference between the aggregate
net tangible assets of the subsidiaries acquired by the Company pursuant to a group
reorganisation in December 2001 and the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued for

the acquisition.
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LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED 2 X{t THRA A

Schedule of Property
MEEF

INVESTMENT PROPERTY RAME
Group’s Expected date of
Location Area Use Stage of completion ownership completion
b B H#& Az 2 A PR ER SEEERE BHTHA
East of Jiangnam Avenue,  16,606M?2 Undetermined  Not yet commenced 100%  Undetermined
South of Jinmao Road, construction
West of Jingang Road,

Changshu Economic
Development Zone,
Jiangsu,
China
RELT#RE E AT 16,606 F 7K REEE EENGECEE REETE
R
TRREAR -
BRI AR
B IAR
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